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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
ZE-XEF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FExT FET &
Revenue W25 22,071,521 19,427,118 +13.6%
Gross profit EF 2,195,678 2,121,657 +3.5%
Profit for the year before share of D{hEF A TSR]
results of associates attributable AN F#EH AFE(S
to owners of the Company FREF 949,915 893,113 +6.4%
Profit for the year attributable to ~ ZNA B A AJE(L
owners of the Company INEE 5 ) 581,867 845,422 -31.2%
EBITDA and before share of TEITE LA LY
results of associates Bk N B ZEAE BT A 2,348,642 2,197,491 +6.9%
EPS (HK cents) R & F) B
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 20.02 29.08 31.2%
DPS (HK cents) SRR E GBI
— Interim — dh Hf 7 7 -
— Final — RHA 2 3 -33.3%
— Full Year — B4 9 10 -10.0%

The final dividend of 2 HK cents per share (2015: final dividend of 3
HK cents) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Basic earnings per share, dividends per share and dividend payout ratio
BREXRER - BRERERIKELER

EPS AR & H)

— Dividend payout ratio j& 8.kt =&

HK cents
#a [l OPSERAE
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HE'Em'm N 1:
0 0
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
* The calculation of basic earnings per share and dividends per share for the year from 2007 to 2010 have been adjusted for the bonus
issued and the share subdivision that have been approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 19 January
2011.
* T FE T FFHRELBFIRGRREGAEERRER -E——F— A+ N ARITZREGFFIAE L BEITARK
SR HFAIE L 752 o

Analysis of EBITDA and before share of results of associates margin, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)

BEFBERBEURSIEBEQTRENANER - BRR - EERRRURARIRD T (%)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Gross profit margin
EF%
Operating profit margin
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Net profit margin attributable
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Turnover by geographical segments
SRRk A —F S0
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Turnover by operating segments
BEE BB D 2 EXE

23% Electronic consumer products (Note 2)
7 BPHBERMF2)

77%

LCD products (Note 1)
BRI EREMR (P 1)

83%

Note 1: LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD products and touch panel products
M1 RERBERHER — NERSHRASRBTIRERMBIERESD

Note 2: Electronic consumer products — manufacture and distribution of electronic consumer products such as CCM,

fingerprint identification modules, personal health care products and electrical devices

HEED (PINMEEEEA  EAENRE AARRERRETRE)

Mizt2: EFHEER — BRERDHE
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THE CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBREE

Truly International Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) has regained the growth in the
Group's revenue in 2016, which has met our expectation last year.
The revenue in 2016 was increased by approximately HK$2.6 billion
or 13.6% when compared to 2015 (HK$19.4 billion).

Besides, the Group has achieved its 2016 main targets of launching
the production of Huizhou factory and raising enough funds to build
the 5th generation TFT-LCD production line in Shanwei, which have
stated in the Chairman’s Statement of 2015 annual report. The
Group’s Huizhou factory has successfully started mass production
of AMOLED panels in November 2016, which could help the Group
to satisfy the customers’ need on AMOLED panels thereafter. The
Group has obtained the 48 months HK$4.5 billion bank term loan
facility in June 2016 for building up the 5th generation TFT-LCD
production line in Shanwei. The management expected that the
construction work of 5th generation TFT-LCD production factory in
Shanwei would be completed by the end of 2017 and the
production would be launched in early 2018. They can improve the
completeness of the Group's production capacity on LCD module
and touch module products and strengthen the customers’
confidence on the Group.

However, as the Huizhou factory has just started to mass
production since second half of 2016, it incurred a significant
operating loss in 2016. Thus, the Group has shared its 563% loss
with the amount of around HK$369 million in 2016 accordingly.
Thus, it constituted the major reason for the decrease in the profit
attributable to the owner of the Company in 2016 by 31.2% when
compared to 2015. The management thinks that the Huizhou
factory would also incur operating loss in 2017. Profit attributable
to the owner of the Company before share of result of associates
in 2016 has been increased to HK$950 million from HK$893 million
in 2015.

Owing the depreciation of the currency of Renminbi in 2016 and
the decrease in average selling price of the Group's key products, it
affected that the gross profits margin of the Group in 2016 has
been decreased by 1% when compared to 2015.

In 2017, the management would focus on improving the Group's
profit margins, improve the Huizhou factory operating results and
complete the construction work of the 5th generation TFT-LCD
production factory on schedule. The management expects that the
Group’s revenue can still grow by double digits in 2017.
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The management would like to express its appreciation to bankers,
staff and workers for their continuing support and contribution
towards the Group. In addition, the management wishes to extend
its gratitude for customers, suppliers and other business partners.

Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW AND AWARD

Revenue for the year recorded an increase by 13.6% amounting to
approximately HK$22.1 billion (2015: HK$19.4 billion), which is the
new high of the Group's revenue. The Group has achieved to
regain the growth in revenue in 2016 since a decrease in 2015. It
was mainly attributable by the double digits revenue growth in
2016 from both smartphone related products and non-smartphone
related products. For smartphone related products’ revenue in
2016, the growth was mainly contributed by the fingerprint
identification modules product and compact camera module
product.

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
before share of results of associates has been increased by
HK$56.8 million or 6.4% when compared to 2015.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$582 million which was 31.2% less than 2015 (approximately
HK$845 million). Basic earnings per share for the year decreased to
20.02 HK cents from 29.08 HK cents in 2015. The 2016 total
interim dividends of 7 HK cents per ordinary share were paid and
payable during 2016 (2015: 7 HK cents). In view of this, the Board
of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 2
HK cents per ordinary share (2015: 3 HK cents), representing a
payout ratio of 45% (2015: 34.4%).

The gross profit margin for the year decreased to around 9.9%
(2015:10.9%) and net profit margin for the year attributable to
owners of the Company decreased to 2.6% (2015: 4.4%). As
stated in the Chairman Statement, decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly because of the depreciation of the currency of
Renminbi in 2016 and the decrease in average selling price of the
Group's key products. Except the above mentioned reasons,
significant increase in share of loss of associates was the most
significant reason for the significant decrease in profit attributable
to the owners of the Company, which has been published in the
Profit Warning announcement dated 9 March 2017. The main
reason for the significant increase in share of loss of associates
was because the major associate, Truly (Huizhou) Smart Display
Limited (15 7 (2 /) & 88 # = B BR & &), of the Group incurred
significant operating loss by its first year of production in 2016.

Same as last year, the decrease in average selling price of the
Group's key products in 2016 were mainly smartphone related
products but the decreasing magnitude was lesser than 2015.
Besides, the depreciation of currency of Renminbi in 2016 was
much more significant than 2015, it affected the gross profit
margins for PRC domestic sales as the major raw materials were
still relied on imported raw material.

RBOE K817
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

The Group’s LCD business including touch products was about
77% of the Group revenue in 2016. Other businesses of the Group
including the sales of compact camera modules, fingerprint
identification products and printed circuit board were 23% of the
Group's revenue in 2016. LCD business would continue to be the
core business of the Group in coming few years.

The Group continues to put resources in the Group's research and
development by spending around HK$760 million in 2016 (2015:
HK$755 million). During the year, the Group continued to register
many patents related manufacturing process of the PRC factories
of the Group.

Major Award

The Company has made it into the 2016 "“Forbes Asia’s Fab 50”.
2016 Forbes Asia’s Fab 50 has been announced in the September
2016 issue of “Forbes” Asia magazine, which are selected from
the pool of 1,524 public companies in Asia Pacific Region. “Forbes”
has been identifying the Fabulous 50 list each year since 2005. To
arrive at “"Forbes Aisa’s Fab 50", the public companies have at
least US$1.7 billion in annual revenue. A company, which either
loss making or the revenue less than 5 years ago, is not qualified to
be selected. Companies carrying a debt ratio higher than 50% or
that are more 50% owned by listed parents are also excluded.

Segment Information

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of performance focuses on the
sales of different types of products. Inter-segment sales are
charged at prevailing market rates. Thus the Group is currently
organised into two operating segments which are sales of LCD
products and electronic consumer products. The information for
each operating segment is as follows:

manufacture and distribution of LCD
products and touch panel products

LCD products —

manufacture and distribution of
electronic consumer products such
as CCM, fingerprint identification
modules, personal health care
products and electrical devices

Electronic consumer —
products

10 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

DEWERFE

R BB R IR 5 IS IS R R SR
mT

BE-_E—NF+_HA=1—HILFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Segment
REE ETHE total  Eliminations Consolidated
BTBRER Em PEMAE s sy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TER
REVENUE g
External sales AN 16,952,981 5,118,540 22,071,521 - 22,071,521
Inter-segment sales HEREE - 229,675 229,675 (229,675) -
16,952,981 5,348,215 22,301,196 (229,675) 22,071,521
RESULT 4
Segment result ECES 1,159,818 323,223 1,483,041 (14,146) 1,468,895
Finance costs BEER (180,237)
Unallocated expenses ANEERT (416,306)
Profit before tax TArE A 872,352
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-—FT—AhF+-A=1T—HIFE
Electronic
LCD consumer
products products Segment
VL BETHE total  Eliminations  Consolidated
BRREM Em NEEH Egpi e
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THT T THL TR THT
REVENUE [
External sales IME 16,067,993 3,359,125 19,427,118 - 19,427,118
Inter-segment sales HEREE - 326,813 326,813 (326,813) -
16,067,993 3,685,938 19,753,931 (326,813) 19,427,118
RESULT ES
Segment result NEEE 1,329,844 37,436 1,367,280 (5,450) 1,361,830
Finance costs B%ER (102,501)
Unallocated expenses FORRAX (135,973)
Profit before tax HArEF

1,123,356

SENEFR o ERERERAT 11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments, finance costs and share of results of associates. This
is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers by location of customers and (ii)
the Group’s non-current assets by location of assets.

DERENEARDEPRITHEEXS - EFHT
TEERMTARAFEEZDER MBEER LY
HEE R R EENZ D EARIVAEN - thAEE

LERREMEANDBEERRFTERRNE
JIE

TREI (VA EBREFPAER D BHOINEEE
P e & (i) AEEIREEMAE S BN IERE

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

IEBEF W RBEE
2016 2015 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
TE—XE —E—REF
—E-XKE —£—h% +=ZHA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FExT FHEIT
PRC == 17,980,122 14,634,342 10,002,427 8,357,052
Europe BOM 1,277,159 1,013,792 - -
South Korea 2L 1,076,247 2,250,079 - -
Hong Kong BB 584,632 539,864 72,938 61,983
Japan SN 395,599 369,929 - -
Others Hi 757,762 619,112 - -
22,071,521 19,427,118 10,075,365 8,419,035

Outlook s

Global demand for smartphone is still very strong in 2016 and is
expected to be continued in 2017; and our major PRC brands
smartphone customers have increased their global market share
rapidly since 2016 and improved their global smartphone ranking
into top 5. The management believes that the Group's smartphone
related products orders would be still very good in 2017 and be
benefited by the continuous growth of the Group’'s major
customers. It would help the Group to achieve the double digits
growth in the Group's revenue in 2017.

For the non-smartphone related products of the Group are still
growth gradually, it can help the Group to maintain or improve the
profit margin.

As stated in the Chairman’s statement, the major associate, Truly
(Huizhou) Smart Display Limited ({5l (M) S R R B R Q7))
of the Group would still incur operating loss as a new factory in
2017, so it would be a burden to the Group's profit in 2017. The
management would try their best to improve the operating results
of this associate in 2017.

12 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

e

R-T—RF - 2RHEEFRZBRDR+D
B BEHLERER_T—+ERHE - BT
—ANFRE BAZERPEREERTREPH
HERTSHELRER  EERETHREES
FRAEMAM - BEEERE AFER_-F
—tFZBRETFREBEREDNS o AE
VTHEERAEBTBRPZFHERE  BYHA
SER-_ZF—LtFEREmEMEER -

AEEEREFRABERDAZSRE B
RS RIRT AR -

BIMEFEREEMML - AEBEZERHERFE
MOEM) BB RBERATMERSTRE  R-F
—tENBELLZEE UBAREER-F
—tFEZENERAE EREAN _FT—LF
BHREUBERR B EEE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Proposed Spin-off Update

The management would like to update the Shareholders and
investors that the Proposed Spin-off is still under progress in PRC.

On 21 March 2016, CSRC has accepted Truly Shanwei's application
for a separate listing of its shares by way of A Shares listing on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. For detail, please refer to the
Company’s related announcement dated 22 March 2016.

On 29 June 2016, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange confirmed that
the Company may proceed with the Proposed Spin-off and also
granted a waiver from strict compliance with the applicable
requirements in relation to the assured entitlement under paragraph
3(f) of Practice Note 15 of the Listing Rules. For detail, please refer
to the Company's related announcement dated 4 July 2016.

Further announcements will be made by the Company as and
when appropriate in compliance with the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Results

Results for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's audited
consolidated revenue amounted to HK$22.1 billion (2015: HK$19.4
billion), representing an increase of 13.6% as compared that of last
year.

The Group's gross profit margins and net profit margin attributable
to the owners of the Company decreased to 9.9% and 2.6% in
2016 from 10.9% and 4.4% in 2015 respectively.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company before share of
results of associates was increased to HK$950 million (2015:
HK$893 million). EBITDA and before share of results of associates
was increased to HK$2,349 million (2015: HK$2,197 million) by
6.9%; profits attributable to owners of the Company was
decreased to HK$582 million (2015: HK$845 million) by 31.2%; and
basic earnings per ordinary share was decreased to 20.02 HK cents
(2015: 29.08 HK cents) by 31.2%.

Finance costs

Finance costs were significantly increased by around 75.8% from
HK$102.5 million in 2015 to HK$180.2 million in 2016. It is mainly
because the Group has utilized HK$2.3 billion in late June 2016
among of the granted 48 months HK$4.5 billion bank term loans for
building the 5th generation TFT-LCD production line. Furthermore,
the Group has issued RMB750 million corporate bonds in PRC in
July 2016. The gross debts of the group has been increased
significantly accordingly from HK$4.9 billion as at 31 December
2015 to HK$8.1 billion as at 31 December 2016 by 65%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Share of results of associates

Share of loss from associates for the year ended 31 December
2016 by the Group has been significantly increased to HK$368.0
million when compared with last year (2015: HK$47.7 million)
because the major associate, Truly (Huizhou) Smart Display Limited
(EH (BEM) S se B R AR 2 A], of the Group incurred significant
operating loss by its first year production in late 2016.

The operating loss of Truly (Huizhou) Smart Display Limited ({Z F|

(RN e R A PR A E]) for the year ended 31 December 2016
was approximately HK$700 million under HKFRS and after
adjustments to follow the Group accounting policies. It was mainly
included wages expenses of approximately HK$100 million, water
and electricity expenses of approximately HK$70 million, raw
materials consumed of approximately HK$250 million, depreciation
expenses of approximately HK$120 million, bank loans interest
expenses of approximately HK$50 million and exchange loss of
approximately HK$90 million.

Income tax expenses

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, two of the
Company’s PRC major subsidiaries were continuously approved as
Hi-Tech Enterprise and entitled to 15% PRC enterprise income tax
for three years from 2015 to 2017. Accordingly, PRC Enterprise
Income Tax is provided at 15% for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Significant Investment, Acquisitions, Assets and
Liabilities

Update on investment in an associate — Truly (Huizhou) Smart Display
Limited (15 %) (M) HBTHRAH)

During 2016, the Group has further contributed RMB159 million by
cash pursuant to the relevant capital increase agreement and
maintained the same shareholding of 563% by the Group without
change.

The construction of Huizhou factory of the associate has been
completed in the first half of 2016 and the Huizhou factory
successfully started mass production of TFT panels and AMOLED
panels in second half of 2016. The associate incurred significant
operating loss in its first year of production in 2016, which 53%
loss shared by the Group in 2016 and affected the Group's result
accordingly. The management expected that the associate would
continue to incur operating loss in 2017, which would continue to
affect the Group’s result in 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

For the bank loans obtained by the associate with the guarantee
provided by the Group in November 2015 with the maximum loans
limit RMB2,180 million plus USD120 million, the associate has
further withdrawn the loan amount of RMB1,174.5 million plus
USD8 million in 2016. As at 31 December 2016, the associate has
withdrawn the loan amount of RMB1,824.5 million plus USD 98
million. The remaining balance of loan amount of RMB355.5 million
plus USD22 million would be expected to be withdrawn in 2017.

Besides, the remaining short term loan with the amount of
RMB410 million as at 31 December 2016 by the Group to the
associate has been extended to 2017.

Update on 5th generation TFT-LCD Production Line progress

On 22 January 2016, the Group has entered an agreement with
Samsung Display Co., Limited to purchase the machinery and
equipment of the 5th generation TFT-LCD production line with
color filter production line (“L5 Equipment”) with the amount of
USD50,880,000. For detail of the transaction, please refer to the
discloseable transaction announcement of the Company dated 22
January 2016.

On 11 March 2016, the Group has further entered 2 services
agreements (L5-Equipment Disassembly and Assembly Services
Agreement and L5-Equipment Transportation, Packing and
Warehouse Keeping Services Agreement) with YMC Co., Ltd. for
certain L5 Equipment (i) disassembly & assembly services and (ii)
transportation, packing, warehousing keeping, move-in and move-
out services for the total service fee of (i) USD36,220,000 and (ii)
USD35,260,000 respectively. For detail of the transactions, please
refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated 11
March 2016.

On 31 March 2016, the Group has entered the L5-2nd phase
equipment agreement with Samsung Display Co., Limited to
purchase the 2nd phase machinery and equipment of the 5th
generation TFT-LCD production line with the amount of
USD31,300,000. For detail of the transaction, please refer to the
relevant announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2016.

On 5 July 2016, the Group has further entered a L5-2nd phase
Equipment disassembly services agreements with YMC Co., Ltd.
for certain L5-2nd phase Equipment disassembly services for the
total service fee of USD12,316,000. For detail of the transactions,
please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company dated 5
July 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

On 10 and 24 November 2016, the Group entered 2 services
agreement (L5-2nd phase Equipment Transportation, Packing and
Move-in & out Services Agreement and L5-2nd phase Equipment
Assembly Services Agreement) with YMC Co., Ltd. for certain L5-
2nd phase Equipment (i) transportation, packing, move-in and
move-out services and (ii) assembly services for the total service
fee of (i) USD32,865,000 and (ii) USD18,474,000 respectively. For
detail of the transactions, please refer to the relevant
announcement of the Company dated 10 November 2016 and 24
November 2016 respectively.

All the above major machinery and equipment and relevant services
for the 5th generation TFT-LCD production line were incurred in
aggregate of USD217,315,000. Besides, the Group has entered
into the construction general contract agreement with CCEED, the
general contractor, for the civil engineering construction of 5th
generation TFT-LCD production line factory in Shanwei with
estimated total agreement price of RMB1,015,000,000 and not
exceeding RMB1,200,000,000 on 30 September 2016. For detail of
the transaction, please refer to the relevant announcement of the
Company dated 30 September 2016.

All the above agreements were entered for building up a high-end
automotive and smart device display factory and considered in the
interest of the Company and Shareholders as a whole. The
management considered that the investment in the 5th generation
TFT-LCD production line can further increase the Group’s market
share in the professional display market and is expected to lead to
continued growth in revenue and profits to the Company, and to
stabilize the Group's supply to meet its customers’ product
requirements. The Group decides to invest in the 5th generation
TFT-LCD production line for specializing in the field of display for
the target market, mainly used in automobiles, home appliances,
industrial and medical markets. All the above agreements
consideration would be paid by the HK$4.5 billion term loan facility
being obtained in June 2016 and internal resources.

The construction work of the 5th generation TFT-LCD production

line factory started in October 2016 and is expected to be
completed by the end of 2017.

16 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

R-ZE—XNFE+—A+BR-_+MHA  AEHE
YMC Co., Ltd. 5] 3 @18 PR 7% 175 5% (L5 28 — HRR% 15
By BERSEREHEUARILE _HREL
HRB W) NAEEE TLOE —BRE)E
B RE - AERDEERS  R()VBEERS &k
% B @ 5 5D Bl Al) 32,865,000 Tt i)
18,474,000% 7T - EEAR ZFHBHLHARFH
HE-_T—RNF+—ATEE-_Z—X<F+—A
—t+HAZHEEAL -

T BERERARTFTLCDAEGREB s T E#
RNEBEARIEBERS S R E $£217,315,0003%
Lol RZZT—XRFELA=ZTH  KEEE
A EPE \BRNILESERARTFT-LCD £
ESBEZ T RBIRIVEABRAR  AREE
A A AR 1,015,000,000 7T K& TiBiEA R
1,200,000,0007T - EEAR B H BB LM A ARH
AT RNENA=ZTHZHBEAE -

EXFERET AR B N R ER
EBEBEMI Y YEEEARA MRS
Flezx - BIEERAE  RERFEFANRTFT-LCDEE
BAE—SREASBENEXBNETMS 2MHE -
WA B AR E R aFfFEER  WiE
EAEEHRENREEEFPZERT K - A&E
ARERENERRTFT-LCDAESR  EXAEDN
BRNGREE  TZEANAE  RASHE - T
LBEME  EXEBBREBKUARZZ—X
FRARBZAEBSTEHRERRERATER
XAt

FRARTFT-LCDAESGBEZERTIREER_Z
—NETARBRYEREN —E—+FFRERT -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Update on 4.5th generation capacitive touch panel production line

The 4.5th generation capacitive touch panel production line has
successfully completed the construction in the first half of 2016
and started mass production in 2016 accordingly.

Update on Available-for-sale investment — Hannstar

During 2016, all the shares of Hannstar Display Corporation, being
hold by the Group since 2011, has been disposed over the Taiwan
Stock Market for approximately NTD602 million or USD19 million.
It incurred a gain of approximately HK$97 million being recognized
in 2016. A fair value loss of approximately HK$53 million had been
recognized during the year ended 31 December 2015.

During 2016, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting to
approximately HK$1,218 million and furniture, fixture and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$253 million for the
purpose of enhancing its manufacturing capacity and production
automation in the China factory campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 27.8% to
approximately HK$23,297 million which comprised approximately
HK$13,197 million of current assets, approximately HK$8,242
million of property, plant and equipment and approximately
HK$1,858 million of other non-current assets. Total liabilities were
approximately HK$16,002 million, of which approximately
HK$11,669 million were current liabilities and approximately
HK$4,333 million were non-current liabilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable, net of restricted bank deposits,
cash and bank balances, were approximately HK$5,516 million
(2015: approximately HK$2,755 million). It was increased by
approximately 100% when compared to these borrowings as at 31
December 2015. These borrowing bear interest at prevailing
market rate and their maturity profiles are shown in the financial
statements. For non-current portion of these borrowings were
matured within 5 years.

For financing the 5th generation TFT-LCD production line, the
Group has successfully obtained the HK$4.5 billion 4 years bank
term loan facility in June 2016. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
has utilized HK$2.3 billion. The remaining HK$2.2 billion loan has
utilized in January 2017. Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it will
be an event of default if the controlling shareholder, Mr. Lam Wai
Wah, is not or ceases to be the chairman of the Company. For
detail of the specific performance covenant of the loan facility,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 June
2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Furthermore, the Company’'s major PRC subsidiary, Truly Opto-
Electronics Limited ({5 # 3¢ & X {3 B R A A]), has successfully
issued the first tranche of domestic corporate bonds with the
amount of RMB750 million on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in
July 2016 in the PRC for working capital purpose. The Company
will announce details of the issue of subsequent tranche(s), if any,
of the Domestic Bonds as and when appropriate. For detail of the
Corporate Bond, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 25 July 2016 and 28 July 2016.

The financial position of the Group is still healthy as at 31
December 2016 while maintaining a sufficiently level of restricted
bank deposits, cash and bank balances (approximately HK$2,539
million at 31 December 2016) together with adequate unutilized
banking facilities. The gearing ratio based on total interest bearing
debts, net of restricted bank deposits, cash and bank balances was
approximately 82%, which has increased from 39% at 31
December 2015.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries
and associated companies for the year ended 31 December 2016.

General

The state of the Group's current order books is very strong.

Except for investments in subsidiaries, associates and available for
sale investments, neither the Group nor the Company had held any
other material investments during the year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in construction in progress,
furniture, fixture and equipment and plant and machinery were
approximately HK$2,840 million. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had no pledge or mortgage on its fixed assets.

Around 25,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our
Shan Wei factory in China and around 100 personnel in the Group’s
Hong Kong office. Total staff costs for 2016 were approximately
HK$1,957 million.

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure commitment of around HK$1,330 million in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment was
contracted for but not provided as at 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

Contingent Liabilities

At the balance sheet date, a subsidiary of the Company is a
defendant in a legal action in Italy involving the alleged defective
goods manufactured by the subsidiary according to its customers’
designs and specifications. The claim above against the subsidiary
is approximately Euro 7.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$59 million) in aggregate. The directors believe, based on legal
advice, that the case has legal and factual grounds to defend and
therefore it is not probable that losses (including claims for costs)
will be incurred. As a result, no provision has been made at the end
of the reporting period in this regard.

In addition, at 31 December 2016, the Group has given corporate
guarantee for bank borrowings granted to the associate (Truly
(Huizhou) Smart Display Limited ({5 ] (M) BB R AR 2 A))
with the borrowing limit at approximately HK$3.36 billion and the
bank loans with the amount of approximately HK$2.79 billion were
withdrawn by the associate.

Furthermore, at 31 December 2016 the other shareholder of the
associate provided corporate guarantee to the above bank
borrowings in proportion to its respective ownership interest
amounting to approximately HK$921 million (2015: HK$867 million).
A counter-indemnity in favour of the other shareholder is executed
pursuant to which the Group undertakes to indemnify the other
shareholder approximately 27.4% (2015: 24.5%) of the liabilities
arising from the bank borrowings.

The directors assess the risk of default of the associate at the end
of reporting period and consider the risk to be insignificant and it is
less likely that any guaranteed amount will be claimed by the
counterparties.

Subsequent Event after the Reporting Period

On 14 February 2017, the Group has entered into the Investment
Agreement with among Others, Leshi Zhixin, pursuant to which
the Group has conditionally agreed to acquire in of aggregate
2.3438% equity interest in Leshi Zhixin at a consideration of
RMB720,000,000. For detail of the transaction, please refer to the
discloseable transaction announcement of the Company dated 14
February 2017.

On 14 March 2017, EF1&TEPE/\E], an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, has entered into the co-operation memorandum of
understanding with Shucheng County People’s Government and
China Fortune Land in relation to the formation of a company in the
PRC. The newly formed company will be primarily engaged in
research and development and production and sale of LCD display
products. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 March 2017.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be considered to
hedge, if any.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OTHER INFORMATION
Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2 HK
cents (2015: 3 HK cents) per share for the year ended 31
December 2016, based on ordinary shares in issue (number of
ordinary shares issued at 28 February 2017: 2,907,099,398), to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members on
26 May 2017 (Friday). It is expected that the final dividend
payments will be made to shareholders on 5 June 2017, Monday,
subject to the Company’s shareholders’ approval at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

The interim dividends in aggregate of 7 HK cents per share (2015:
7 HK cents) were paid in 2016 and 2017 to shareholders on the
register of member of the Company at the close of business on 7
June 2016, 5 September 2016 and 8 December 2016, based on
2,907,099,398 ordinary shares in issue.

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 45%.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2017
Annual General Meeting, the Register of Members will be closed
from Wednesday, 17 May 2017 to Monday, 22 May 2017, during
the period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied
by relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 16 May 2017.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed on Friday, 26
May 2017, during which day no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at the above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2017.
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Customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 50% of the total sales of the Group
and purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 16% of the total purchases of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, our largest customer
accounted for approximately 18% of the total sales of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 4% of the total purchases of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2016, none of the directors, their associates, or
any shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group's five largest customers and/or
five largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, aged 64, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has
over 40 years of experience in the electronics industry. He is
primarily responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall
strategic planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 58, is an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chief Operating Officers of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group’s operations in respect of internal
controls and risk management, investors' relationship and external
affairs. He joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, aged 61, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD
products and other electronic components. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he had been the sales manager for a number of
electronics companies for over 10 years.

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 53, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company and the Managing Director of a PRC subsidiary of the
Company, Truly Opto-Electronics Limited. He is mainly responsible
for the factory production management of the Group. Mr. Li
graduated from the Jilin University of Technology and Engineering
Management in 1987 and joined the group in 1989. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in a multinational motor car manufacturer in
Guangzhou City, the PRC for almost two years.
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Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 59, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Group's Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, member of
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a council
member of the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants.
Mr. Chung has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management and has been the independent Non-executive
Director, management consultant and Company Secretary of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 58, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and members of the Group's Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is the holder of a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Wisconsin,
Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is a CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER®
CFP® and a member of the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong
Kong. He is the Senior Financial Planning Consultant of a
professional insurance company in Hong Kong. Mr. Ip is also an
Accredited Mediator of the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 68, is an Independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile industry.

Mr. Ma Wai Tong, aged 45, is the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Group and the Company respectively.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in January 2011 and had 20 years of
auditing, accounting and financing experience including four years
with major international accounting firms and over ten years in
senior accounting positions in various industries. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ma
holds a Bachelor's degree in Accountancy and a Master’'s degree
of Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

By order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERESE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
liquid crystal display products including touch panel products and
electronic consumer products including compact camera module,
fingerprint identification modules, personal health care products
and electrical devices.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 49.

Interim dividends in aggregate of 7 HK cents per share, amounting
to approximately HK$203,497,000, was paid and payable to the
shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 2
HK cents per share based on the number of ordinary shares in
issue (number of ordinary share issued at 28 February 2017:
2,907,099,398) to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 26 May 2017 (Friday),
amounting to approximately HK$58,142,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to HK$1,217,5634,000 and furniture, fixtures and equipment
amounting to HK$252,789,000 for the purpose of expanding its
manufacturing capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in
the People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERESE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:

F LT Z 5 k0w

R-F-—AFT-A=+—RA ARAFTHET
B HEIT

2016 2015

—E—XE —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Share premium I DR (B 777,925 777,925
Special reserve BRI 17,410 17,410
Retained earnings IR & 7 41,736 35,733
837,071 831,068

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distributions or paying
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that
immediate following the distribution or paying dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the
Company's subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares
of these companies were acquired by the Company, and the
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisitions.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEHES

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Lam Wai Wah
Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang

Non-executive director:

Li Jian Hua

Independent non-executive directors:

Chung Kam Kwong
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer
Heung Kai Sing

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company's Articles
of Association, Cheung Tat Sang, Li Jian Hua and Chung Kam
Kwong retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

EFZRHRERKOHER

RZZE—RF+-A=+—H " BREAQRER
H M HAERGI 352 1EFTR T 2 B ae M ATac &% -
RIRBAEMRAREZHITEFR HHZESTAD
BANMERDNB REBHERSMERAGZER
BERHEBEABE ZARG REEE LB Z K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,
were as follows:

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

o RAERAR DR T -

"R

(a) ZAATEBREEO0.02ETZEBER

Number of issued
ordinary shares

Percentage of

the issued share

capital of

Name of director Capacity held the Company
FigzBe 81T HEQAR 2B BT
EEHE g4 ZERHE BREFDL
%
Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 1,219,722,000 41.96%
R EnEBA
Held by spouse (note 1) 74,844,000 2.57%
BEEBIFEE (1)
1,294,566,000 44.53%
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 15,649,000 0.54%
=HE EmlEa A
Held by spouse (note 2) 1,650,000 0.06%
BEEBIEA (M 2)
17,299,000 0.60%
Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 6,129,000 0.21%
RIEA EnHEAA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 14,547,000 0.50%
FRE En#BA
Held by spouse (note 3) 22,500 0.00%
BEEFEE (MEE3)
14,569,500 0.50%
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(b)

Registered capital of the associated corporation of
the Company

Truly Opto-Electronics Limited (“Truly Shanwei”) (Note 4)

(b) ADFEEEEZEMER

ERRERGBAERS R (EFLE]D (L)

Percentage of
paid up registered

Registered capital capital of Truly

i (D)

controlled by the director

Bt OxEER

Lam Wai Wah is deemed to be interested in 74,844,000 ordinary
shares of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by his
spouse, Chung King Yee, Cecilia.

Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 1,650,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held
beneficially by his spouse, Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 22,500 ordinary shares of
the Company, being the interests held by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan.

Truly Opto-Electronics Limited, a company registered in the
People’'s Republic of China, is an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Registered capital contributed through Lhasa Development Zone
Jianyuan Investment Management Co., Ltd, a company wholly-
owned by him.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2016.

Name of director Capacity contributed (RMB) Shanwei

RMZEMER HEFLEZ#Z

EEpE 14 (ARH) ZMEXRT DL

%

Lam Wai Wah Beneficial owner 647,360 0.1904
R EmBAA

Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 2,590,120 0.7618
|mHAE EnlEA

Cheung Tat Sang Beneficial owner 647,360 0.1904
SREAE EmBEAA

Li Jian Hua (note 5) Interest of corporation 647,360 0.1904
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SHARE OPTIONS

During the year, the Company has not adopted any share option
scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of Lam Wai Wah, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the
issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company

R Rz 42
FA - ARAEERRTARERESE -

MERGARF R

R EX[EE 2 iy RARRR (D et IPT I ER 2 51 -
AR RS EAE(AIFT B A R A I B 2 B A &
B BEARRIZEFAEBRBARRR NIM
H A AN E e 2 B B 7 MBS Fa o

FERE

SR EXFIIRBEABMEERA 2 ERI - REAX
REBRES MR GIIEIBOHEMRFIEE
BRRELMABER R-T—RE+_A=1+—
B THRREHAEARRAAERARR ZE T
AR 2 B R

wr
ANFABREENNETZEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
iz B 81T AR ARZE BT
BRER A 514 EEREE REBDL
Chan Kin Sun (note) Beneficial owner 158,950,000 5.47%
BeR 238 (Bff &%) EnlEEA
Held by spouse 54,208,000 1.86%
HEBEE
213,158,000 7.33%

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed to
be interested in 213,158,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has not yet adopted new share option scheme
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

MODEL CODE

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year
under review in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules"”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group's financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal controls. The annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, Mr. Ip
Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, with Mr. Chung Kam
Kwong as chairman of the Audit Committee. They meet at least
four times a year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEES

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance
with the relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees
are chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-
executive director and comprise three other members, namely Mr.
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being independent
non-executive directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an
executive director of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the
Company is essential to safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders and enhancing the performance of the Group. The
Board is committed to maintain and ensure high standards of
corporate governance. We have complied with all the applicable
code provisions set out in the “Corporate Governance Code”
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016, except for a major deviation as below:

. Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive are not separated and are performed by the
same individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah. The Board will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Company. The Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the Company’s management and believes that this
structure will enable us to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

o Code Provision A.6.7 — Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 20 May 2016 due to prior business commitment.

. Code Provision E.1.2 — The Chairman did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2016
due to unexpected important business meeting.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated in
a proper and prudent manner. More details are contained in the
separate Corporate Governance Report on pages 33 to 41.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$9,233,000.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 17 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREHS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board

The Board was responsible for the Company’s corporate
governance, and was ultimately accountable for the Company’s
activities, strategies and financial performance.

The Board was mainly responsible for formulating and approving
the business strategies, objectives, policies and plans of the
Company, and monitoring the execution of the Company's
strategies. It was also responsible for overseeing the operating and
financial performance of the Company and establishing appropriate
risk control policies and procedures in order to ensure that the
strategic objectives of the Company are materialized. In addition,
the Board was also responsible for improving the corporate
governance structure and enhancing communications with
shareholders.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the execution of
strategies and decision-making for day-to-day operation of the
Company to the management team headed by the Managing
Director, Mr. Lam Wai Wah.

The management reported regularly to the Board on the operating
and financial performance of the Company. Development,
expansion and other major capital expenditure and commitment, as
well as major financing decisions were all reviewed and approved
by the Board.

Connections between members of the Board

None of the members of the Board have any connections (including
financial, business, family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other during the period under review.

Director’s dealing in securities

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with their obligations
regarding dealings in securities under the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules during the period under review.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term
but were subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Association.
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Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards his independence
to the Company and considered that each of the independent non-
executive Directors was independent to the Company during the
period under review.

Directors’ Training

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses. The Company has been
encouraging the directors to participate continuous professional
development courses and seminars organized by professional
institutions or professional firms and reading materials on relevant
topics so that they can continuously update and further improve
their relevant knowledge and skills.

In addition, the Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with written materials.

Board committees

The Board was supported by three Board Committees. Each Board
Committee has its own responsibilities, power and functions. The
chairman of the respective Board Committees reported to the
Board from time to time and made recommendations on matters
discussed when appropriate.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of
reference, which have been revised by the Board on 26 March
2012 pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Remuneration
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam
Kwong, an independent non-executive director and comprise three
other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung
Kai Sing, being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong
Pong Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of the remuneration of the directors and senior
management and the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the directors for the year are set out in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Four meetings were held during the year by the Remuneration
Committee to review the remuneration packages and assess the
performance of executive directors and the director’s fees of the
independent non-executive directors. All members of the
Remuneration Committee attended the said meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the nomination committee (the
Nomination Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 and 20
August 2014 pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Nomination
Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong,
an independent non-executive director and comprise three other
members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai
Sing, being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Wong
Pong Chun, James, an executive director of the Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and
to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to any
proposed changes.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
its approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Four meetings were held during the year by the Nomination
Committee to review the nomination procedures and the current
composition of the Board. All members of the Nomination
Committee attended the said meeting.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee is governed by its terms of reference, which have been
revised by the Board on 26 March 2012 and 18 November 2015
pursuant to the CG Code, setting out the Audit Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
provide supervision over the Group's financial reporting matters,
internal controls and the system of risk management.

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, Mr. Ip
Cho Ting, Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, with Mr. Chung Kam
Kwong as chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year. All

members of the Audit Committee attended the said meeting.

The Board Meetings, Board Committees Meetings and

General Meeting

The Directors’ attendances at the Board Meetings, the Board
Committees Meetings and General Meeting for the year ended 31

December 2016 were as follows:

BERZEGZIEREREHRERASEME
FHREER  AEELERER -

BERZEgREHRLEE  BEFRENEMA
FEMRK - MERAEREBERZBELR

‘D]]D

FR BRZEGRTOAEE - 2RERZ
¢
=

SREHDHE Lt @

EEZEeS EECZEEHURRERAE

REBEEZZE—R"F+_A=1+—HULEFE E=
REEZSR EFTLZEgeEUMBRERE
ZHEBERIAT

Number of meetings attended

HESERE
General
Board Committees Meeting
ExgzEe BRXE
Director Audit Remuneration Nomination
- EX Frip RrE
Executive directors:
HITES:
Lam Wai Wah n/a n/a n/a 0
MEZE T EA N 5E A i A
Wong Pong Chun, James n/a 4 4 1
'EHE TEA
Cheung Tat Sang n/a n/a n/a 0
RESE T EA T E A TEA
Non-executive director:
FHITES :
Li Jian Hua n/a n/a n/a 0
T T iE A TEA TEA
Independent non-executive directors:
BIkHITES:
Chung Kam Kwong 4 4 4 0
EIB N
Heung Kai Sing 4 4 4 1
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer 4 4 4 1
HEH=F
Total number of meeting(s) held 4 4 4 1

BITEREH
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees paid to the
Company'’s external auditors amounted to HK$3,000,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours to identify, control impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Throughout the year from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016,
the Board conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the internal
control system in all material respects including but not limited to
operational, financial, risk management and compliance controls.
The Group’s system of internal control comprised a well-defined
organizational and management structure with levels and limits of
authority which was established to help achieve business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized access or
disposal, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records to
produce reliable management and financial information for internal
use and for publication purpose, help management mitigate
potential risk factors and ensure compliance with relevant rules and
regulations. The system was designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems so as to achieve the Group's objectives and long-term
goals.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.
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Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

. Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

. Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

. Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to
resolve material internal control defects

The Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external compliance consultancy and
Internal control services limited as its risk management and internal
control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to conduct the annual review
of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Such review is conducted annually and
cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope of review was
previously determined and approved by the Board. The Adviser has
reported findings and areas for improvement to the Audit
Committee and management. The Board and Audit Committee are
of the view that there are no material internal control defeats
noted. All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.
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The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the Shares or their
trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA
of the SFO. Executive Directors and the legal advisor also may
have responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or
circulars to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by
the Board from time to time.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements for the year 2016. The Management also provides all
directors with monthly updates giving them a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08
and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ma Wai Tong,
CFO of the Group. The Company Secretary reported to the Board
chairman from time to time. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

Since Mr. Ma was appointed in 2011, he has to take no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the financing year
commencing on or after 1 January 2012 and he has fulfilled the
requirement during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder

meetings,

including the election of individual directors. All

resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each shareholder meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

(1

(2)

(3)

40

Communication with Shareholders and Procedures
for putting forward proposals at general meetings

All published information, including financial statements,
results announcements, circulars and notices of general
meetings and associated explanatory documents
are promptly posted on the Group's website at
www.truly.com.hk. Viewers can also send enquiries and
proposals putting forward for shareholders’ consideration at
shareholder meetings to the Board or senior management by
email at enquiry@truly.com.hk or directly by raising questions
at the general meeting of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"”) of the
Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at the general meeting of the
Company may send a written request to the Board of the
Company to request for a EGM. The written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the
purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company’s principle place of business in Hong Kong.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general
meetings may follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’'s Memorandum and
Articles of Association during the financial year 2016. A copy
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association is posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises the importance of diversity to corporate
governance and the board effectiveness.

The purpose of this policy is to set out the basic principles to be
followed to ensure that the board of directors (the “Board”) has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.

Board nomination and appointments will continue to be made on
merit basis based on its business needs from time to time while
taking into account diversity.

Selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience
and professional experience.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIAZBEDHRE S

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to
139, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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BIUZMENRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

MEEHFER

FRBTFHERBATZEEHE - R/YX
MG AU BHRR LB RAERZFH  ELF
HREATEFBEBGEVBBRMMARTRR
ETRE MATTEHELETREREBZE

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our & o
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B S

Valuation of interest in an associate

ERBE L AERZGE

We identified the valuation of interest in an associate,
Truly (Hui Zhou) Smart Display Limited (“Truly HZ"), as a
key audit matter due to its significance in the context of
the Group’ s consolidated financial statements.
REERBEMEMN) BB T~BR AR (EFEM])
iRz MEYE BREZEEMBEHRREETA &
RTRZ REARELTFIE

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is required to assess at the end
of each reporting period whether there is any indication
that the carrying amount of interests in associates may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group shall
assess them for impairment. As disclosed in note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements, as at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of interest in Truly
HZ amounted to approximately HK$948 million.

WA S MMM IMKE - EEBEANEBRRE
ARAEBEEEMNPTREREE R AR 2 REE
HRRE - WEEEANAETR - ESEEETRER
it o MRS M BRI 19FTEEE - R —RF
TZA=+—8 REMNEMNAEEZSCEEREBENAR
948,000,000 7T °

KTz ETMAREARENER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of interest in
Truly HZ included:
RIREEFBEMNERFTERERETZEFBE

e Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
appropriateness of the Group’ s accounting policy in
assessing impairment for interests in associates;

o THEME BE5EpHEENRRERETRE G

RS HARTRY

e Assessing the Group management’ s process for
identifying the existence of impairment indicators for
the interests in associates;

o Th BEREEEERNBEARRDEESFERED
RZBIT

e Discussing with the management about the status of
the newly constructed production facility owned by
Truly HZ and reviewing the related feasibility report
which incorporated a profit forecast; and

e HEMEMINBBENSMNMEENEEERE M
NEEFRBE BN BETHRE &

e Evaluating the financial position of Truly HZ to support
the operation of the production facility before it
achieves profitability.

o FTEEMBEMZHMBRRARE I IFEERELEE -
BEEEERANAE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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Recoverability of trade receivables

FEW AR 2 AT B 2

We identified the estimated allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the use of
judgment and estimates by the management on the
recoverability of trade receivables.

FR A B EE B B B 75 Uk (o) e W AR TE (58 PR B R A AT - R
TR RN ERIA LSt R R =T 1E -

As set out in notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining the allowance for trade
receivables, the management has exercised judgement
when estimating the timing and future cash flows
expected to be derived from the trade receivables and
ascertain their future cash flows based on the credit
history including default or delay in payments, settlement
records and aging analysis of the trade receivables.
Where the future cash flows of a receivable is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss
will be provided for such a receivable and recognised in
profit and loss.

AR A SRR 4 R 23F7S, - EETEIKEETE 2
BB L RAFTERERRE R TEE B EWARIB RS R IRER
TRER  BEEECELAE  MREERL (BHEEK
BRIBZ MR - BRE S E R D7) T B AR
SRE o MAEFTERKRFIEZ RRRERELNEREE
At Z B IEE L R BB R RE - WNERER -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding
trade receivables from two customers (the “Two
Customers”) with an aggregate amount of
HK$1,070,117,000 of which HK$1,030,270,000 are past
due but not impaired as disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RERERR - IR E G mARMEE 23 FTi%ER - E5EEA
MEEPIZMUBEPRPDER ZEREERES &
1,070,117,000 %7t - E 1 1,030,270,000 % 7T /AE @ HI(E
RmME o

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the estimated allowance for trade
receivables included:

ATt eH A ARG R ER O R EMET 2 EF B

e (Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for trade
receivables is estimated by the management and the
determination of credit limits, credit approval for
customers and other monitoring procedures for
recovering overdue debts;

s THMEBENAGHEBUREREEERATFPRERH
PREE Bt E B A Rt U Bl e ERE TS 1T 2 At B R
B

e Testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables, on
a sample basis, to the sales invoices;

o UBRIHE BT URFEMARIE 2 R DT

e Discussing with the management and evaluating the
basis of trade receivables without/with little settlement
during the year or subsequent to the end of the
reporting period as identified by the management and
their assessment on the recoverability of these trade
receivables;

e HMEBEMINATEEEEMZINTANSRSE PR
ZeWE /BREMNRZ BKERE 2 % - ARESH
BE A UK B 5% 5 FE W BRI AT 2 R4S

e Assessing the reasonableness of allowance for trade
receivables with reference to the credit history
including default or delay in payments, settlement
records and aging analysis of the trade receivables;
and

s Z2ELERL (BREEBYREZHERNR  BREHR
BRI IT) ST B UCRTEPIER B R EEE &

e Tracing of subsequent settlement from the Two
Customers and inspecting the repayment schedule
agreed with them.

o EIRZMALE PR ERAR I inE B E 7 FE 8 ENE
B
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Htt|w#

ERFREFAHEAMEN AR - AMBEHNBRSF
BAZMBEER  ETBREAVBRR LATT
ZIZBENRE o

AITHEEVMBHRRZBEAL NRERMEH -
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Af ©
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EREEMEFR - WREUEEEMEHN TS EER
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EREMHE  EREMREAUFFEERERR
MZIER - WMERAITERITZIIE  FAGHES
REMERLRBABEREL - ATHFEREZ
B-HENE  AMTUBEMMBRSE

EERECRRGEMBERRARIRZR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

46 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

BB FHRSMBERARBZRE

AITZBR  ERBEFEEZRBEREERANH
BREBEO TN FERRAFRBERMER 2 E
RERBARGAERE  THABRATE
ZREBEMWE - AT 2 MEER BETEL - M
WEEMAR - AT TERARE < AR EM
Hp ALAESRE EEAEE - AIERELRK
F2RE - BETERBERB(EBRTERDET
ZEF AR -ERERRATFERBREIA
AR PR T LA e BRFR SR ER AR 51 - IR A IETAH
Z LRI BB K E R AT B B IR A TS
WAL ME KRR A MIEMRAEL 2R TE -
AIB B #8 SR BRI A AR E K ©

ERB(EBETENETES ZBES - 17
ERTEFRAE  RTTERREER - AT

o BRIFFHEBNKEFRERM BB S E W
BRFEBAFERRM Z AR - RETM]TT
BT AREELRR - ARERFTEM
BEETRE FRATERZER - i
REGFERIBE S R BR - B EBER &
RERA - SR BRABEMESIZ £ Bk Rag
ZRARFMERZERERREZ AR
MARBEHRAFRMEB 2 EAHRRA 2
E

o TEREBEHIEMZ A - R EE
SR - BE ALY B R
CEAEBEER -

s FHEEFMEASHBERZBEERFELE
sHASH AR E 2 A IR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIAZBEDHRE S

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Keung To Wai, David.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
17 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED"‘fSTA‘

For the year ended 31 Decem&{ZOlB
L

1
—BLLEE '\

ENT.QF P'ROFlT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REFTZ FJI_

2016 AONES)
—REF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Revenue Wzs 5 22,071,521 19,427,118
Cost of sales 4 E BN (19,875,843)  (17,305,461)
Gross profit EF 2,195,678 2,121,657
Other income HAb A 7 79,731 132,600
Other gains and losses Hinigzs 38 (18,307) (107,923)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A EREREEE
investments (2,188) (29,821)
Administrative expenses THEA (481,392) (410,454)
Distribution and selling expenses DI NIEEE R (352,885) (432,511)
Finance costs kg4 9 (180,237) (102,501)
Share of results of associates DIEEE AR EE (368,048) (47,691)
Profit before tax AR 872,352 1,123,356
Income tax expense Frig®if 10 (195,785) (194,509)
Profit for the year N A 11 676,567 928,847
Other comprehensive (expense) AEFEHMEME(BX) WA
income for the year
Items that may be reclassified AJRERAE BN IR E e
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIE g :
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBFIES 2 INEZTE
translation of foreign operations (687,363) (456,641)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AHEEREC AT EEBE
investment - (52,296)
Share of other comprehensive MR E R E HEa 2w (F ) A
(expense) income of associates (2,453) 1,164
(689,816) (5607,773)
Reclassification of fair value gain on E%ﬁ“*ﬁﬂj’%ﬁﬁ,ﬁkﬁ%&;ﬁ
disposal of available-for-sale NEEEKE
investment (8,987) -
Other comprehensive expense AFEEEMEERY
for the year (698,803) (507,773)
Total comprehensive (expense) AFE2E(FX) WALRE
income for the year (22,236) 421,074
Profit for the year attributable to: REZRFIER :
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE ¥ =N 581,867 845,422
Non-controlling interests eI AR fE A 94,700 83,425
676,567 928,847
Total comprehensive (expense) REELHE(BIX) WA BEEREN
income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RABIER A (83,332) 357,463
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 61,096 63,611
(22,236) 421,074
Earnings per share BRAF 15
Basic (HK cents per share) HEAR(FMIRA) 20.02 29.08

A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FI l

e MBRAER

At 31 December 2016 « A=E—X<E+=-H=+—H

o

2016 AONES)
—EB-RE —T—RF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T TEx TFETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WME - MENEE 16 8,242,070 6,968,996
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIA 17 279,065 181,788
Intangible assets mEEE 18 = -
Goodwill RS 413 413
Interests in associates REEE N RIR SRS 19 965,260 1,223,727
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 20 15,270 76,648
Deferred tax assets EERIREE 31 8,783 8,513
Deposits paid and other payments MUY - BB KR
for acquisition of property, sl e MEMR
plant and equipment 588,557 44,111
10,099,418 8,504,196
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 8 21 2,603,218 1,775,706
Prepaid lease payments A HEEKIA 17 6,891 4,850
Trade and other receivables JE A BR 18 J% EL b FE W k1B 23 7,522,216 5,004,135
Tax recoverable AU Bl FE T8 381 42,153
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 24 27,894 6,265
Amount due from an associate JiE Ui Bt & N B FR0B 25 497,691 768,600
Restricted bank deposits PR BRI TIE X 26 85,303 72,656
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERIRS 26 2,453,623 2,055,200
13,197,217 9,729,565
Non-current assets held for sale BEIERENIERTEE 27 126 683
13,197,343 9,730,248
CURRENT LIABILITIES FEBaE
Trade and other payables FENBRIE & E A FE N FhIB 28 7,736,522 5,652,125
Amount due to an associate AR NEIE S| 22,018 -
Tax liabilities HIBEAE 30,319 1,490
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured 847 2 B fth & 5k - MEIK IR 29 3,794,507 2,882,553
Derivative financial instruments TEEmTIA 24 85,545 42,571
11,668,911 8,578,739
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,528,432 1,151,509
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERADAMS
LIABILITIES 11,627,850 9,655,705
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured $847 & Efhf& 2k - £EIKIE 29 3,432,853 2,000,056
Bonds payable EfHES 30 827,456 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE 31 72,674 60,068
4,332,983 2,060,124
NET ASSETS AEFE 7,294,867 7,595,581
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AONNS)
—E-XRE —E—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRHE
Share capital &N 32 58,142 58,142
Share premium and other reserves AR 1 5 (B I B RE 6,653,333 7,027,375
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AELER
of the Company 6,711,475 7,085,517
Non-controlling interests eI i 583,392 510,064
Total equity HEmAARE 7,294,867 7,595,581
The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 139 were HRFA9BEEFI19B VAV BRBEREDR =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 —+F=A++ HEEST SR ERERETZ - 1
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: AUATATREREE
Lam Wai Wah Wong Pong Chun, James
Mg BEHME
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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FeHREmR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ¢ %&E:E—}—\iﬁ-h:}% =

Total equity
Investment attributable to
Share Share Special redemption  Exchange Other  revaluation Retained  ownersof controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve profits  the Company interests
|
BEAEL
Bx  RGEE  HRIRGE EAEERE  MNERE  HEER REEMEGE  REEM BREE  FERER A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 K$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr AT T o T T T T T T T
note ) note b)
) (HzED)
At 1 January 2015 RZF-RE-A-A 58,142 777925 990 867 831,626 1135212 61,283 4210861 7,076,906 446,453 7523359
Profit for the year TEERT - - - - - - - 845,422 845,422 83425 928,847
Other comprehensive (expense) income A E £ 28 (Fx)
for the year WA
— Exchange differences arising on —AERNERMEE
translation of foreign operations NEER - - - - 436,827) - - - 436,827) (19,.814) 456,641)
— Share of other comprehensive —HMEBEDRER
income of associates 2ERA - - - - 1,164 - - - 1,164 - 1,164
— Fair value loss on availablefor-sale ~ — AT ERELNT
investment BEFE - - - - - - (52,29) - (52,29) - (52,29)
Total comprehensive (expense) income ~ AEE 27 (F%)
for the year WA&E - - - - 435,663) - (52,29) 845,422 357,463 63611 421,074
Transfer E2 - - - - - 88623 - (88,623) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution ~~ BZAMEZRE
(note 14) (Ms14) - - - - - - - (348,852) (348,852) - (348,852)
At 31 December 2015 RI2-1E
+-F=1-H 58,142 777,925 990 867 395,963 1,223,835 8987 4618808 7,085,517 510,064 7,595,581
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - - 581,867 581,867 94,700 676,567
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEEM2ERY)
income for the year WA
— Exchange differences arising on —AERNERMEE
translation of foreign operations NEER - - - - (653,759) - - - (653,759) (33,604) (687,363
— Share of other comprehensive —HMEBEDRER
expense of associates 2EHE - - - - (2483) - - - (2.453) = (2,483)
— Reclassification of fairvalue gainon ~~ — EXHEEF
disposal of availablefor-sale LERALTEE
investment ez - - - - - - (8,987) - (8,987) - (8,987)
Total comprehensive [expense) RER2E (AR A
income for the year @z - - - - (e56212) - (8987) 581,867 (83,332) 61,09 (22,236)
Transfer ik - - - - - 30,137 - (30,137) - - -
Dividends recognised as distribution ERASRIBRE
note 14) (Bt 1) - = = = - - - (2907100 (290,710) - (90710
Incorporation of a non wholly-owned Gl -mE2E
subsidiary HBAE - - - - - - - - - 12232 12,232
At 31 December 2016 RIF-7E
+-A=1-8 58,142 711925 990 867 (260,249) 1,253,972 - 4,879,828 6,711,475 583,392 7,294,867
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(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value (a) BRI AR RTINS B AR 2 I EEEA A TRtk
of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the BT ZROEEMERZ 5 -
Company's shares issued for the acquisitions.

(b)  Other reserves comprise: (b) EhiEEERE

(i) the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve (i EREARLMBE ((HE])(CTRESH) KL
of the subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China ZHBRARZETERHHEENCEBRRHEE -
(the “PRC") other than Hong Kong. According to the Articles of RIBPRENBAG ZABZERMA - AEVAE
Association of the PRC subsidiaries, a percentage of net profit as RERNERZAFETED L EEREEATR
reported in the PRC statutory accounts should be transferred to HFEERCERRMEE  ZAoLLHEEZER
the statutory surplus reserve and the enterprise expansion reserve RINESESMBERT - ATABFEETIKEZR
determined at the discretion of the board of directors of these FIEE MOXRRHEHREANBEREER
companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be set off against ME g EMER K&

accumulated losses whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can be
used for expansion of production facilities or an increase in
registered capital; and

(i) difference between the carrying amount of interest in a subsidiary (i) HE—MHBARERS 2 REEENB AR
disposed of and the consideration received arising from the AEFBIVELEZEWERBRE ZHNE
decrease in equity interest in a subsidiary. B o
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FeRKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 « HZ_—Z—

ANE+F-A=t+—BLEE

s

2016
— RN —ZE—HRHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETH
Profit before tax TR 872,352 1,123,356
Adjustments for: AE
Interest income FEA (12,605) (29,599)
Interest income from an associate /NI R N (17,452) (10,701)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A E R EREEE
investments 2,188 29,821
Amortisation of technical know-how YT EIE 2z 3o = 49
(Reversal of) allowance for doubtful debts, RER (B E) B EF58
net (2,436) 15,927
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREETE
plant and equipment 928,005 923,894
Release of prepaid lease payments fERRTE H E TR 6,864 5,287
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE M -
plant and equipment = MR 2 1R 47,986 63,069
Loss on fair value changes of derivative PTESMIEZ ANFERA
financial instruments, net BE BT 33,195 14,637
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE 2 E
investments (97,293) -
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERHIELEIERS
held for sale BEz M (865) (1,967)
Share of loss of associates R E A P E1E 368,048 47,691
Finance costs B8 A 180,237 102,501
Dividends from available-for-sale A HERE ZRE
investments (763) -
Operating cash flows before movements in KRt EEE S EF AT
working capital TEIRSRE 2,307,461 2,283,965
Increase in inventories FEEM (888,863) (287,551)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other RN BR TE K E 4th FE W R 0E
receivables (30) /A (2,647,496) 445,152
Increase in trade and other payables JE A~ BRIE K7 L b A< RRIEIE HI 2,303,587 190,227
Settlement of derivative financial instruments & {14 SRt T A (11,850) (11,793)
Cash generated from operations KRTEEFTHE L IR 1,062,839 2,620,000
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) RE(BH) BAFEH 13,555 (53,323)
PRC withholding tax paid B BETENH (12,585) -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BHRBEEMSH (113,220) (176,804)
Tax paid for other jurisdictions Hith e AR 2 AmTiE (591) (434)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFBRSEE 949,998 2,389,439
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS.

For the year ended 31 Decembbr2016 ‘-ﬁff.ﬂ?d/\iﬁ‘l' A= ‘|’ HIEFE

lﬂ" g

2016 AONNS)
— RN —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Dividends from available-for-sale investments ] it B &% & 7 i% 8. 763 -~
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BELEE (2,828,033) (1,439,020
Purchase of available-for-sale investments ﬁﬁ“ﬁ—ﬂ HERE - (25,265)
Investment in associates ABEE DRI ZIRE (186,507) (591,530)
Advance to an associate F’?Hﬁ? EWNEIE-E (254,589) (768,600)
Repayment from an associate Bt S N EIER 487,697 -
Deposits paid and other payments for B  BREMREX
acquisition of property, plant and equipment  £]4& R H 1 3k18 (544,446) -
Additions of prepaid lease payments AT EFIEE N (129,845) (48,017)
Interest received =R & RSN 40,758 29,599
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEDE - BEMXETEHIE
plant and equipment 36,945 2,724
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale  HE&ER#HERERERIA
investments 147,496 -
Proceeds from disposals of non-current HEFEREIER
assets held for sale BEMSHIE 1,403 3,755
Placement of restricted bank deposits FERZRHIRITER (346,143) (254,358)
Release of restricted bank deposits RS SIRESRITER 333,496 218,188
Capital contribution from non-controlling R ITE
interests 12,232 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&EZEBFFARSEE (3,228,773) (2,872,524)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERETREMES (8,701,080) (9,781,297)
Dividends paid BT E (290,635) (377,886)
Interest paid BEARFE (179,671) (102,501)
New bank and other borrowings raised FERITREMEE 11,052,881 9,238,650
Proceeds on issue of bonds payable BITREMNESERIA 872,281 -
Advance from an associate LN EE 44,636 -
Repayment to an associate MEE & N B (21,410) -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ~ BRESEBF748 (F1 /) B4 54
ACTIVITIES 2,777,002 (1,023,034)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASHAND B4 RB&ZEER #1M
CASH EQUIVALENTS OR2) 8 498,227 (1,506,119)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUZRERAELEEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,055,200 3,627,224
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ERgsoE
CHANGES (99,804) (65,905)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZEESNASZHEER -
OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash BIR{THEGERES 2,453,623 2,055,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company. The Company is a public limited company with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr.
Lam Wai Wah, who is also the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “General Information” to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“USD"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") which is different
from the functional currency of the Company, as the directors
of the Company consider that HKD is the most appropriate
presentation currency in view of its place of listing.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“"LCD")
products including touch panel products and electronic
consumer products including compact camera module,
fingerprint identification modules, personal health care
products and electrical devices.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Application of amendments to HKFRSs and a new
Interpretation

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

2.

—RER

ARRRHASHEREMSEHSE A RDAEM
IR~ RXEHMRATE - AAB/—FH LT
ERAR ERNDEFTEHARZMERA
A ([BERP]) BT - HRAZERA LT B/MHE
ERLE NBARRERFREFAER - K
N AR ST e B B 2 U AR
FHI—REH] —EOWEE -

ARBZNBEEERET - ARRIEFELKE
BEEMME  RRETAREGZ2IE
% MR MBHRIIARRAEEER A
SN BT °

ARBRERRAT - EMBARZEE
X RBEENMHERRBE TS (TLCDDE
m(BREEERER) NETHEER  BR
IREVIRMIRAE - FEAGE AR - A ARIRE
BEMMNEFRE -

BRI RESTFEMBEREER
(FERMBRELER])
FEREBMBHREER (BF]) RH2E

RAFE AEEEERERNATHEES
e AE ([BEGTEAE ) BM 2 E Y
BREE (ERT) -

BB GRS 2R WS B E R
F115UEET) ZEERIE

BB ERE 15 HETE
(1&8%8T)

BB ERFE 1657 BB ITE R
LEBEFHER] ZAEZER
#3859 (185])

EFGTERIE 165 BE:AEMED
EEBEFER
F 415 (1BE])

BB GRS 2R "EER : EA
F10% - BB LAEARZ
WMEERIFE 125 K& EINER
BB G ERIZE 28597
(1&8%8T)

BB RS 2R —E-—FEF
(1&8%8T) —ZT—PUFAER

ZEBYMBRE

RN 2 FEUGE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M EGERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 « HE_—ZE—R"F+_HA=+—HILLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Application of amendments to HKFRSs and a new
Interpretation (continued)

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

2.

ERAMIRESITERMBREEN
(FEEMBREEN]) (&)

FEREBMBREERN (B RF2E
(#&)
RANFEEER Dl &M SR EER (ER])
BAKERAFEBEFRE 2MBRAR
AR Bt B 476 BT R T8 IR B 3
BEATE-

© MR E 1o R 4 B2 #7’T RS RT BB Bt
B EER

&R B I AR AR T 5 2R MR W AR AR
AR RARIERI B A MBS £

EAUHHREER SRTA

F IR
EBMBREED BEAHWZ

£ 1558
UK HREER HE
E 165k

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transaction’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

. all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI). All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016, application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets. The Group's available-for-sale investments, including
those currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be
measured as fair value through profit or loss or be designated
as FVTOCI (subject to fulfilment of the designation criteria). In
addition, the expected credit loss model may result in early
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods

2.
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or services to customers in an amount that reflects the WHa5 - AR ZEEEEMIBZ
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in EERSREEEESZRE - AEBME -
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the ZAERS| AR 2 AE S

Standard introduces a b5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e  Step1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer . F—F: HAERPIIUZEH

e  Step2: Identify the performance obligations in the . EF-H: BRIEHRZEHEME
contract

e  Step3: Determine the transaction price . F=#F ETX5E

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the o FNE: BRPEIEZEEHNPZ
performance obligations in the contract BREE

e  Stepb: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity . ERH: REBTHRENEER(EL
satisfies a performance obligation BLiL) FER YR

T AEFH
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on
the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERAFMIREESITEEMEREE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under
the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will
be presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$11,538,000 as disclosed
in note 35. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of
new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

U Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate is recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at

the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
development as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of the
items of property, plant and equipment (other than properties
under development) less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

FEEHBE @)
HE

UK 2 163K B e R B 1 2 4B KRR 10 LB
K EmEERAEARES  REEARER
#) o HtEOZMINEREEMEA -

AEEERSEEA

RERN 2B WA RAAENBRIAE
AOEN B ER - NER R ZHHEEROR
EEZNPEERAGABEEEZREA
B WIRBOBRNEREERRFAX

AEBERKBA

REBN AR (BRBARBREERM
FA D2 AR B HIR A B RETER
RAX  BIEAZAEEREETRRRBEER
E BB < BRERA -

HELMREF
HWEQRERE LT RETEN - AIAEE
) B AR & R0 B RERE M 2 AR A HB 1D &
pREHELCEBEAKE  FEEEHN
D BRRRESEEML - EHMETRDH
BARBREEMORBRIN - ERBERT - B
DHROSESEREERY - ABNE @ &
BEREFE(BREN BN ZENK
) SRR tih B F OB EH#E
@ BEAFEE RN BT E
YEH DL

R EFRRE A SE D B - ARRSI B EH
W ME DM ER R INAERA
SIVE FENBRERIR] - YREHBREANE
AROREESH o MR E AT RER SN L1 [
BFEHOIELIER  MEMBENBESER
BMEMW - WIERME - BFEKREBAK -

T—RNFFH o FEHNERERIF 69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 « HZE_—FT—XF+-A=+—HILFEE

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including acquired technical know-how with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
followings have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

U the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss of financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL").

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments or observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loan receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amount
due to an associate, bank and other borrowings and bonds
payable) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

FEEHBE @)
eWMIAE)

Wﬁﬁ%
EREERDRBEEREZAREND
% SEEZCREEMBEMERZEX
BRI R & ERER TS -BEE - RIRE
EEBUHEREREE - WAKEREEZEL
BRETAE @A R bR & O &R E
B MREEZHCEReREE  IIAE
EHERENEECRERGNEMBTELNZ

HERE - WAKERECERSREEN
BREZEAMMD AR N DR - A EEESE

BRZTREE  TEMEEIMZAAE A
ERERER -

REUHEREREER - BEREERED K
KEWHRBHEMZ 258 - SIMERPRER

EREEANEE BETERR - s
H—ir AEEFEEUERRCRAE - BUSRE
RemBEROERENRENREZE
%Ei BRIEEPER o

BREREREE(HERMN) 2BEBER(R
EXEBEHE zEFEER)

RRER  AEERFTHEEREREE
ZERHEE  WETREETNTRETEZE
BEHTREESE - WEREWERTR
AIZEGRTEEZ JREI S5 - ETRER
BeREME) - BERNEE 2 AIWE £
TREAER G - AR BAEEZEEMBER
THNEMZ I RESE EAER—BZ
D@E%@ET%&%EE}‘HEJ{T AT%FJT
= @RIREREELN  TRBIEES
&—EZ o fg B 2E Ef%&ﬁ@mﬁ'\]ﬁid\ﬁuﬁﬁﬁi
BRAR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 * &HZE_-ZE—A<F+-_HA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimation (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Truly (Hui Zhou) Smart Display Limited (“Truly HZ")
as an associate

Note 19 describes that Truly HZ is an associate of the Group
although the Group has 53% ownership interest and voting
rights in Truly HZ. Other than the Group, there are two other
shareholders in Truly HZ. The directors assessed whether or
not the Group has control over Truly HZ based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Truly HZ unilaterally. Resolutions for relevant
activities of Truly HZ require approval in shareholders’
meetings as stated in the Articles of Association of Truly HZ.
In making their judgement, the directors considered the
requirements for shareholders’ meeting as stated in the
Articles of Association of Truly HZ, in which it states a
shareholders’ meeting cannot be held without the presence
of either one of the other two shareholders, and legal
opinions obtained from an independent lawyer practicing in
the PRC. On this basis, the directors concluded that the
Group does not have control but significant influence over
Truly HZ because any resolutions to be passed in
shareholders’ meetings shall have the consent from either
one of the other shareholders demonstrated by their action of
being present in the meetings. Accordingly Truly HZ is
classified as an associate of the Group.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 4. FREHIERGEHTFTRESHEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Classification of UMW Z I RIF AR A A (" HMBZF IR ") as an
associate

Note 19 describes that #1/1 & # #}3% is an associate of the
Group although the Group only owns 12.5% ownership
interest in HLJNZ M RHL . The Group has significant influence
over FLM BT RHY by virtue of the contractual right to appoint
one out of the five directors to the board of directors of that
company.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its trade and bills
receivables at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether those trade receivables have suffered an impairment
loss. Management has exercised judgement when estimating
the timing and future cash flows expected to be derived from
the trade receivables and ascertain their future cash flows
based on the credit history including default or delay in
payments, settlement records and aging analysis of the trade
receivables. Where the future cash flows of a receivable is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss will be provided for such a receivable and recognised in
the profit and loss.

As detailed in note 23, as at 31 December 2016, trade and
bills receivables amounting to HK$6,980,561,000 (2015:
HK$4,694,937,000) are expected to be settled within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. In determining
the amount of receivables, the management has exercised
judgement in estimating the timing and future cash flows to
be recovered and determined no impairment was necessary
at the end of the reporting period. If the actual cash flows or
timing of recovery are different from expectation, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Estimated outcome of a litigation

As at 31 December 2016, a subsidiary of the Company is a
defendant in a legal action in Italy involving the alleged
defective goods manufactured by the subsidiary according to
its customers’ designs and specifications. The claim against
the subsidiary is approximately Euro 7.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$59 million) in aggregate. The directors
believe, based on legal advice, that the case has legal and
factual grounds to defend and therefore it is not probable that
losses (including claims for costs) will be incurred. As a result,
no provision has been made at the end of the reporting period
in this regard.

B (%)

FERETBUR 2 B Y E (&)

AN B AR R AR B ([HM BT )
SERBE RN

K EE19PTA - BE A KB EEB NI
BURX12.6% 2B - TN BLRE
RAKBZBERT - HRAREE S KR
NEE-BERERRARNEZETIRE
S BAKEHZARBEATEN

fhEr FHBE R 2 T ERR

FEU BRI R B R 1R < fh =R E

RER BN S IR E HIR R B R R IR K e
REZREE  UWEEZERKERERSH
FREEE - MAARBSE RN A EK
RIBREGRERERER  BEECEHH
i N 32(= S L (B3R YGRIR Z B RIS -
BERRENREDIT) EEBBARKEERR
B - WA BRRAZ AR REINE
AREE - Ble stz EUGRIR(E R E & 1R A
o WNIBERFER o

Mt R=ZFE—XRF+=A
—+—HB EHEKREBEEREKEIE
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4,694,937,00078 70) I A RS B R 2 K
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RER A EHENRERIS -

AREARYfE SHEE R
RIB-RFTZA=+—RH  ARENE
RARBEAN—TDERFROME - Far)s

AR ZM B A WIEBREER PR R
BRHEEHRBER - MBARRENSE
R84/ 7,200,000 BX 7T (#8572 47 59,000,000
BIL) c EFMRE ENERERRARY
BEAEREEERENE WK EELE
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5. REVENUE

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of sales
tax, trade discounts and returns, and is analysed as follows:

W

WastRFANEmIHE 2 2 R R BT F0R
REBHIRHER - BRENEE - oW

T~

2016 2015

—R~F —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Sales of LCD products HERBEEARNSEER 16,952,981 16,067,993
Sales of electronic consumer products HEETHEEMN 5,118,540 3,359,125
22,071,521 19,427,118

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance focuses on the sales of different types of
products. Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing
market rates. Thus the Group is currently organised into two
operating segments which are sales of LCD products and
electronic consumer products. The information for each
operating segment is as follows:

LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD
products and touch panel products

Electronic — manufacture and distribution of
consumer electronic consumer products
products such as compact camera module,

fingerprint identification modules,
personal health care products and
electrical devices
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

6. SERE D

DERBERFE

AEBREERBED BB DR EE

DA

BE_F—R"E+-A=+—HLEE

Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total Eliminations Consolidated
HEl 87
BRBEM HEEM PEEE He &8
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT TR THT
REVENUE e
External sales HhgH 16,952,981 5,118,540 22,071,521 - 22,071,521
Inter-segment sales SEREE - 229,675 229,675 (229,675) -
16,952,981 5,348,215 22,301,196 (229,675) 22,071,521
RESULT £
Segment result ECES 1,159,818 323223 1,483,041 (14,146) 1,468,895
Finance costs B%ER (180,237)
Unallocated expenses AOEHEY (416,306)
Profit before tax BEDER 872,352

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE_E-AF+-A=t—HLEE

Electronic
LCD consumer Segment
products products total  Eliminations  Consolidated
RERES En
B Em HEEM ok 53
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THL FAET THET
REVENUE e
External sales HhgH 16,067,993 3,359,125 19,427,118 - 19,427,118
Inter-segment sales SEREE - 326,813 326,813 (326,813) -
16,067,993 3,685,938 19,753,931 (326,813) 19,427,118
RESULT £
Segment result NEER 1,329,844 37,436 1,367,280 (54500 1,361,830
Finance costs HBER (102,501)
Unallocated expenses AAEHAZ (135,973)
Profit before tax Tyl 1,123,356

T REFR o ERNEBERAE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments, finance costs and share of results of associates.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts included in the measure stE D EREFFTEIES

of segment profits: B8
Depreciation and amortisation WrEe R #H
Loss on disposal/write off of HE M
property, plant and equipment GGt

Reversal of allowance for doubtful R B % & 1% [0, F %8
debts, net

SERAE)

DR R FE(E)

REDRZ B BREWNEI 2 N E
SEIBEAAR - 2R NERD R RTT
BEEKAS BEFZHE  TESRTARF
BEZDER VHEREIEBZERRE
RS D BMREUE R © kAR EBEER
REBESAD LB RS HARRNFTEIE

BE-F-A"E+ZA=+—HLFE

Electronic
LCD consumer
products

products Consolidated
ERE £
BTRBEM HEEM ®me
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT THET THERT

759,484 168,521 928,005
43,010 4,976 47,986
(2,436) = (2,436)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Amounts included in the measure & 5 8% K PR B35 H

of segment profits: -
Depreciation and amortisation e R
Loss on disposal/write off of e s
property, plant and equipment  BiE N &2 Ei8
Allowance for doubtful debts KRR A

BE_F—HAE+_A=+—HLEE

Electronic
LCD consumer

products products  Consolidated

Ny=a=rl::] ==
Remfe =1

HEEmM e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTATT

FURNESEE MR
HK$'000
TAT

801,206 122,737 923,943
57,328 5,741 63,069
15,927 - 15,927

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are
not regularly reviewed by chief operating decision maker.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following table sets out information about (i) the Group's
revenue from external customers by location of customers
and (ii) the Group's non-current assets by location of assets.

6. SERE D

TR () AEREIRET P AAEE D EH SN
R P WS K (i) NEEIR B EMEE DR
HIZEREVEEMNER

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
SNERE P R am FRBEE
2016 PAONES 2016 2015

—g-AE —FT-hF ZB-XE —F-IOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT T FHT

PRC F 17,980,122 14,634,342 10,002,427 8,357,052
South Korea 2L 1,076,247 2,250,079 - -
Hong Kong BH 584,632 539,864 72,938 61,983
Japan =N 395,599 369,929 - -
Europe B 1,277,159 1,013,792 = -
Others Hpb 757,762 619,112 - -

22,071,521 19,427,118 10,075,365 8,419,035

Notes: MiEE -

(i) Regarding revenue arising from sales to external customers in (i) TEIE B BUM K2 B b 3 (= SRR P B S Uk RS T
Europe and others, no individual countries are material and hence T BMEARNEREEEAME WL ESRY)
separate disclosure is not required. BUWEER -

(i)~ Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments and (i) FERBEETEFEAHDERERBEERIEE
deferred tax assets. Eo

Information about major customers FERFER

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years NIEEEN AEEAEERETEBRE10%

contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as ZEPZENT

follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-—hHF

HK$'000 HK$'000
F 5 FHET

Customer A’ ZER
Customer B! EE7,
Customer C' g =Sl

3,963,627 3,053,724
3,423,627 N/A 73 F 2
2,270,127 N/A N3 A 2

! Revenue from LCD products
2 Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total sales of
the Group

! RERBEERSEERZ R
2 REEP ZWEIRAEEAHEETE10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 %&E:E—}—\iﬁtzﬁ =

7. OTHER INCOME 7. EHftukA
2016 AONES)
—E—AE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Other income includes: HER AR :
Government grants (see note 38) BT R (RF3E38) 12,492 53,674
Interest income T2 A 12,605 29,599
Interest income from an associate KEBENRZFE 17,452 10,701
Rental income el A 10,323 11,350
Compensation income EREUA 9,483 42
Dividends from available-for-sale AMHEREZRE
investments 763 -
Sundry income FETEU A 16,613 27,234
79,731 132,600
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMESR

2016 2015
—B-A"F —T-AOF

HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT THAT

Loss on fair value changes of derivative PTEERMIERNFEBEEZS

financial instruments, net Ei8F 5 33,195 14,637
Net foreign exchange loss SN BB F B 37,720 16,257
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE M

plant and equipment = M 5% 2 518 47,986 63,069
(Reversal of) allowance for doubtful debts, FBE (#[E]) B 4& 548

net (2,436) 15,927
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEERE 2 e

investments (97,293) -
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERBIELEERDEE

held for sale ZWEs (865) (1,967)

18,307 107,923
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9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS 9. MKER

2015
—E-XKF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FATT
Interest on bank and other borrowings RIT R EALE R FI B 157,862 102,501

Effective interest expense on bonds EMEHZERAERAY
payable 22,375 -
180,237 102,501

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FRSMFAX

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Current tax: AREATIE -

Hong Kong BB 28,748 20,218
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HR B 1 B FTIS R 142,273 157,724
Other jurisdictions Efba)EEm 592 434
171,613 178,376

(Over) underprovision in prior years: BEFE (REERE) BETL
Hong Kong B (58) (698)
PRC h (691) 4,992
(749) 4,294
Net withholding tax paid [RERSEE ARGy NS 12,585 -
Deferred tax (see note 31) RIETIE (RPIFE31) 12,336 11,839
Income tax expense for the year REEFERHFEY 195,785 194,509

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Income tax arising in the PRC and other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, two
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries were approved as Hi-
Tech Enterprise and entitled to 15% PRC enterprise income
tax for three years from 2015 to 2017.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT
Law of PRC") and the Detailed Implementation Rules,
distribution of the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
since 1 January 2008 to holding companies incorporated in
Hong Kong is subject to PRC withholding tax at the applicable
tax rate of 5%.

-z

—=

BB NS T o R EEE A G TR %
K 16.5% 1E o

R B R B A BUA R R AE L 2 FrSHiR AR
AVERER 2 RITHRGTE

REFBAEEEREEER - AARMEFH
MEBAREM EASHEMEE AT
—RAEE T+ F=FEAFE15%ZF
BEAMEHE -

REPECEMERE(HPELEMRGEH
EDRERGEGIAR - B =TT NF—A—
B - AR EEFEMK ZER AR D IK
o B Y B 2 B BRER 2 g MR R 6% 2 i A Y
BN B IEIN -
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10.

90

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

10. FRGMBAX(4)

RERZFAEHAXEES
BE N 2 SRS

BEERERZH

2016 2015
—nE —hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHIT
Profit before tax FRAEDE A 872,352 1,123,356
Add: share of loss of associates o DIEEE N R EE 368,048 47,691
1,240,400 1,171,047
Tax at the average income tax rate B HFREHE517%
of 15.17% (2015: 15.00%) (ZZ—AF : 15.00%) RB 188,169 175,657
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ST 2 B &
for tax purpose 22,820 18,804
Tax effect of income not taxable BAMBRBRA Z B2
for tax purpose (57,958) (29,496)
(Over)underprovision in respect BAFE(RERE) BETE
of prior years (749) 4,294
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTRIGE B 2 RIS E 23,062 6,615
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FABARERZHESEER
recognised - (660)
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings BB A TR D IER T 2 BINH
of PRC subsidiaries 25,908 24,264
Underprovision of withholding tax in FEBARBTFEDDIEAT
respect of PRC subsidiaries on Z BT EET R
distributed earnings in prior years 383 -
Others i) (5,850) (4,969)
Income tax expense for the year REEFSHFAEZ 195,785 194,509
Note: The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2016 e @2 —T—R"Fr-_ZT—AF+_A=+—H

and 2015 represents the weighted average tax rate of the
operations in different jurisdictions on the basis of the relevant
amounts of profit before tax and the relevant rate for the year.
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:

11. FEERF

A M TIRFNER AT
BIRRED

2016
—E—RE

HK$'000
TET

2015
—ET—hHF
HK$'000
T

Auditor’s remuneration 1% ER AT BN 3,000 3,480
Cost of inventories recognised as WRAERAST 2 FEEMRA
expenses 17,337,697 14,666,319
Research and development costs R A 2 IR
recognised as an expense 760,342 754,847
Depreciation and amortisation of: AN EIB 2 E REH -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 928,005 923,894
Technical know-how BT HEZEMNH = 49
928,005 923,943
Operating lease rental in respect MEMEZKLEHOES
of rented premises 11,734 6,867
Release of prepaid lease payments R TER R ERIE 6,864 5,287
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BT
remuneration: BREEHS :
Salaries and other benefits e RHEMBER 1,805,287 1,843,699
Retirement benefits scheme R B
contributions 152,058 190,773
1,957,345 2,034,472

—=

—=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA'FED
SAMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EEE_E—/@F‘I' A=

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERTTHEEMS
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEEEFTHIEATEHEEERNES
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and RITHBEE z2MEemT

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2016 —E—RE
(a) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (a) ®ITES
Lam
Wai Wah Pong
(Chairman Chun, Cheung
and James Tat Sang
Managing (Executive (Marketing
Director) Director) Director)
miEE REE
(EERES Bk (TiEHEE
kgl (BATES) Ex) ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER ;
Fees ik - - - -
Other emoluments: Himig
Salaries and other benefits HeRkEMER 3,662 1,934 2,490 8,086
Performance related RN e
incentive payments (note) (Fi3E) 21,437 936 5,706 28,079
Contributions to retirement RIREFIE B MR
benefit scheme 36 36 36 108
Sub-total Nt 25,135 2,906 8,232 36,273
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above Lt R ITEE e T EARERE IR
were mainly for their services in connection with the RNATRAEBEHBFIZEREZME -
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

2016 (continued)
(b)

12.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

EERTRARMSE &)

—E-XREE)
(b) FEHITEE

Li Jian

[ [TF:}
(Production
Managing
Director)
EE
(EEE
EFEEHAKE)
HK$'000
FHET

#E
HK$'000
FHET

Fees we - _
Other emoluments: HEme -
Salaries and other benefits e MEMmER 1,279 1,279
Performance related incentive ERIFE 7 e
payments (note) (FffsE) 165 165
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRAEFFT B
scheme 5 5
Sub-total /et 1,449 1,449

The non-executive director's emolument shown above
was mainly for his service as director of the Company
or its subsidiary.

LARFATEFTCHMEEZ /W
REEARBXEMBRAREERIR
HIRF 2 S

(c) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS €) BUEHTES
Chung Ip Cho
Kam Ting, Heung
Kwong Spencer Kai Sing Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F&T FET THET F#& T
Fees we 264 132 132 528
Other emoluments: HAnp < -
Salaries and other e REMBER
benefits - - - -
Performance related MRIFE 2 B
incentive payments - - - -
Contributions to RIRREFFT B
retirement benefit
scheme - - - -
Sub-total INE 264 132 132 528
TE-RFFER o SREBRERAA 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED Fi
ReMBGHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %&E:E—}—\iﬁtzﬁ =

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERTTHRERME &)
REMUNERATION (continued)
2016 (continued) —EB-XNE#E)
(c) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued) () BIAFEHMITESEE)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

ERARBIFRTEECME TR
REEREERNRREEZHRERS
ZBE -

HK$°000
F& T
Total for 2016 T NFHEE 38,250
2015 —_E—-FF
(a) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (a) HITES
Lam Wong
WEIEN Pong
(Chairman Chun, Cheung  LiJian Hua
and James TatSang  (Production
Managing (Executive (Marketing Managing
Director) Director) Director) Director)
MEZE RiEE TEE
(FER =Rk (1%
ESHLE)  (BTESD) HEES) k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THBT TET
Fees e - - - - -
Other emoluments: Hib 4 -
Salaries and other benefits ¥4 & H {th 12 F 3,897 1,903 2,487 672 8,959
Performance related BARIBEME 2 12
incentive payments (MF3E)
(note) 16,459 7,722 3,942 163 28,286
Contributions to retirement 3R /K@ ) 51 2| £ 7%
benefit scheme 36 36 36 6 114
Sub-total NEE 20,392 9,661 6,465 841 37,359

94

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12.
REMUNERATION (continued)

2015 (continued)
(b) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

EERTRARMSE &)

—E-HF (&)
(b) FBITES

Li Jian Hua
(Production
Managing
Director)
T
(HEEES
EEEKTE) 4=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Fees we - -
Other emoluments: HEme -
Salaries and other benefits e RHEMER 443 443
Performance related incentive BRI 2 e
payments (note) (BF5E) 107 107
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRAEHFT B
scheme 4 4
Sub-total Ay 554 554

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

(c) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ERATRIEATEZZMETEZRE
MEEARRESHERREZME -

(c) BWIFEHITES

Chung lp Cho
Kam Ting, Heung
Kwong Spencer Kai Sing Total
=Xy HEH= ARG HaEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FHTT FHTT FATT
Fees e 264 132 132 528
Other emoluments: HEMEE
Salaries and other e kEMmET
benefits - - -
Performance related BRIFEA 2 1S
incentive payments - - -
Contributions to RIREFET B R
retirement benefit
scheme - _ _
Sub-total N 264 132 132 528
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12.

REMUNERATION (continued)
2015 (continued)

(c) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

EFRTTHEEME (&)

—E-RF(#E)

(c) BWUFNTES(HE)
ERARBIFRTEECME TR
REEREERNRREEZHRERS
ZBE -

HK$'000
TAT

Total for 2015 TE—RFE

B5t 38,441

Note: The performance related incentive payments are based on
the remuneration approved by the remuneration committee
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Mr. Lam Wai Wah is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Mr. Li Jian Hua has been re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived

any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.
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13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included four (2015: four), directors and the chief executive,
details of whose remunerations are set out in note 12 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one
(2015: one) highest paid employee who is neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

13. AEEEHHMES

FA - ARERERSFHEESENSA (=
T-0F: WA EFRTRES  H#MS
HIFER EXME12 FR HBp— R (=
T-HF: —RUFARAESHITERA
RzREHMEE ZMEFBENT

2016 AONES)
—E—AREF —ET—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT F& 7T
Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMER 1,775 1,736
Performance related incentive payments ~ B2&IZEM 184 725 490
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R i& F 5+ 21 5% 18 18
2,518 2,244

His emoluments were within the following bands: EEEEMES Y SBNT

2016 AONES)
—E-X"E  —THE
Number of Number of

employee employee

EEHA EEZE

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T = 2,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 70 2= 3,000,000 & 7T 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIN
REMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ¢ BE-E—AEI-A=+—HILEE

14. DIVIDENDS

98

2016 2015
ZB-XRE —Z-0F
HK$'000

THAT

HK$'000
TR

Dividends recognised as distribution during AREEER AN IR ZIKE

the year:

2016 Interim dividend of 7 HK cents
(2015: Interim dividend of 7 HK cents)

T RERHRE SR AW
(ZZ—1%F : FHRE

per share FHR7EMW) 203,497 203,497
2015 Final dividend of 3 HK cents —E-RFRAKRESRIBEN
(2014: final dividend of 5 HK cents) ZE—OF  RERE
per share S5 87,213 145,355
290,710 348,852

The 2016 interim dividend in aggregate of 7 HK cents per
share amounting to approximately HK$203,497,000 of which,
HK$58,142,000 and HK$87,213,000 were paid in September
and December 2016 and HK$58,142,000 were payable in
2017 to shareholders on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on 8 June 2016, 5
September 2016 and 8 December 2016, respectively, based
on 2,907,099,398 ordinary shares in issue.

The final dividend of 2 HK cents per share based on
2,907,099,398 ordinary shares amounting to approximately
HK$58,142,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: final dividend of 3 HK cents per share based on
2,907,099,398 ordinary shares, amounting to approximately
HK$87,213,000, in respect of the year ended 31 December
2015) has been proposed by the directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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NN FR B #172,907,099,398 A & 3@ AL &t
B mRE-R"EANANE - ZE—RF
NARBERZE—R"F+ZANBEERH
EREFAIAQNFTBRREZMZBRRIRS=ZZ
—NFEHRHRESHEERTBI  28EOB
203,497,000 7t + & # 58,142,000 7T &
87,213,000 B TTER-_E—RFNLARTZ
BIRA - 58,142,000/ LRI — B —+4
FELS o

BEEDE%IX2,907,099,398 i E @Rt E
KBEHE-_Z—"NF+-_A=+—BLFE
ZAREBEREER2EWL 28O A
58,142,000 w( —Z & — A F: 1%
2,907,099,398k L RB I HEHE_T—F
F+ZA=+—RHLEFEZARBBREFRS
Al £ %4 A87,213,000 ) - HEBEE
RN EEREREF RS EHE -



15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BERER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is FREEAR RESER RN IR E TSR E
based on the following data:

Earnings B F

2016 2015
—E—AE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T

Earnings for the purposes of basic and AUFTEERELRR

diluted earnings per share BERF 2 BT
(Profit for the year attributable to owners (A TIZEE A
of the Company) FERARFE&F]) 581,867 845,422
Number of shares BBEE

Number of ordinary shares for the AUGESREARARE SRR Z
purposes of basic and diluted earnings TR e B
per share 2,907,099 2,907,099

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no =2
significant potential ordinary shares outstanding at the end of 54
the reporting date.

RBEMRYBEEED HTEER
Wik 25| GREFRF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

T’fﬁg /?” |

For the year ended 31 December 2016 » BE—F—"F+=A=
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - BERER

Leasehold Furniture,

land and fixtures and Plant and Motor Construction
buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE &R %8
THhEEF k%E BEREES RE  BRTME aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THL THET THET T THET
COoST %
At 1 January 2015 W-E-1F-A-H 1,411,180 1,072,084 9,000,889 38,086 219503 11,741,742
Currency realignment EHRE (63,852) (50,831) (438,561) (1,051) (48,829) (593,124)
Additions NE 73,79 212,705 846,742 1,133 403,155 1,637,529
Disposalsfwrite off e/ (580) (2220 {210,902) (1.847) - (213551)
Transfers R 42,359 - - - (42,359) -
At 31 December 2015 WZE-RE+-A=+—H 1472901 1,233,736 9,198,168 36,321 531,470 12,472,596
Currency realignment EBRR (89,123) (89,654) (724,013) (1,456) (47,328) (951,574)
Additions "E - 252,789 1,217,534 1,813 1,367,871 2,840,007
Disposals/write off e/ (2,837) (2500 (206,700) (2,531) (1809)  (214,127)
Transfers P 165,547 - 552,960 - (718,507) -
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-7~E+-A=+—-H  1546,488 1,396,621 10,037,949 34,147 1,131,697 14,146,902
DEPRECIATION AND RERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE-R%F—F—H 298,797 459,540 4,174,657 28,150 - 4961144
Currency realignment R (10,065) (22,708) (200,102) (805) - (233,680)
Provided for the year FERE 37,303 117,620 765,682 3,289 - 923,8%
Eliminated on disposals/iwrite off 1€ /#3543 (319) (95) (145,518) (1,826) - (147,758)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA=+-H 325,716 554,357 4,594,719 28,808 - 5,503,600
Currency realignment HBRE (16,611) (41,318)  (338,462) (1,189) - (397,577)
Provided for the year FERE 38927 135,313 751,205 2,560 - 928,005
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite off & /Hid4¥1ss (630) (1390 (126,460) (1.967) - (129,196)
At 31 December 2016 RIZ-RETZA=+—H 347402 648216 4,881,002 28212 - 590483
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—7 F+-A=+—-H 1,199,086 748,405 5,156,947 5,935 1,131,697 8,242,070
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=+-H 147,185 679,379 4,603,449 7513 531,470 6,968,996
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The cost of leasehold land and buildings is depreciated over
forty years or the terms of the respective leases, whichever
is the shorter, using the straight-line method.

The other items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a reducing
balance method at the following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 20%
Plant and machinery 11% to 15%
Motor vehicles 25% to 30%

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

16. M¥ - WER&M (&)

MET BT ZRAABREADL+F4
Hek B HEFHAREERE)FE -

Hib% - BELREEE (EREIREERN)
ABRBRIRIRUE - AT F R HITE -

R BB NERE 10% £ 20%

%= K23 1M%ZE15%

RE 25% & 30%
17. FRFTHERIEA

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEBEMNHERERRE
comprise:
Land use rights in the PRC TEREIFEE 2 + A 285,956 186,638
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TERB DT T -
Non-current asset EREEE 279,065 181,788
Current asset mENEE 6,891 4,850
285,956 186,638
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA'FED
SAMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EEE_E—/@F‘I' A=

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. | EE
Technical
know-how
HK$'000
F& T
cosT R
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R-—_E—RFE—HA—AQ8"
31 December 2016 BA_:=—£¢+_E_+—EI&
—E-RE+ZA=+—H 23,230
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZT—RAF—HF—H 23,181
Provided for the year FEEE 49
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—HR
—E—-R"Ft+=ZA=+—H 23,230
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 RZZBE—ARF+ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=-A=+—H -
Technical know-how are amortised on a straight-line basis MR A T A B AR RS - B E AN
over four years. Fo
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REFEATINESR
2016 AONES)
—E—RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&7T
Cost of investments — unlisted WERA — FELET 1,528,099 1,341,592
Share of results and other comprehensive JE{GERHMEERL
expense (432,784) (62,283)
Exchange difference arising on translation 2% 4 7 N E ZZ0 (130,055) (65,582)

965,260 1,223,727
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

19. RBELATMER (&)
AEERREHROBERRFBET ¢

Principal Proportion of
Form of Place of place of Class of ownership interest
Name of entity  entity registration  operation shares held by the Group  Principal activities
TEEX rEEREZ
ERER ERKS Bl ] i R FERRERLsl @ ETEER
2016 2015
“E-XE —T-1F
|
Truly HZ Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered 53% 53% Development and
EHEM i1 AYa H H capital (Note i) (Notei)  production of
AR (F=Ei) (MfsEi)  semiconductor products
HEREEYEEER
MBI R Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered 12.5% 12.6% Development and
BRI av F F capital (Noteii)  (Notei)  production of intelligent
AfEA (ki) (BEEEi)  camera

Notes:

(i) According to the Articles of Association of Truly HZ, shareholders’
meeting cannot be held without the presence of either one of the
other two shareholders. The directors of the Company consider
that the Group does not have control but only significant influence
over Truly HZ under such a term because any resolutions to be
passed in shareholders’ meetings shall have the consent from
either one of the other shareholders demonstrated by their action
of being present in the meetings. Truly HZ is therefore classified as
an associate of the Group.

On 16 June 2016, {EF¥EEHR /A 7], an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase
agreement with the other two shareholders, being original parties
to the shareholders’ agreement, to increase the registered capital
of Truly HZ from RMB2,000,000,000 to RMB2,300,000,000.

(i) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over #L 1 E 4T &}
} because it has the power to appoint one out of five directors of
NS R under the Articles of Association of that company.

BfRE

(i)

(ii)

%R EER A

REEFEMOAKBIRAR - NSEELRH
BRECRER —RRENER T RITRRAE -
ARAEFBR/EXZGRT - AREHEFE
I EIEHIE - EEEATESN  BERREK
RRE LEBMARRALEBEREST —F
RHRGHRRTRE - AL - FFEMASHR
RAEERERE] -

RZZE—RERNATRB  ARRZEERE
P A RIS S A RN F B b & AR R
(BN R B 2 RBRTX ) I MG E s + B
1= TN 2 2 & A B AR #2,000,000,000
JLIE = AR 2,300,000,000 7T ©

BRASEERRENMN SO 2 ARER
MURE—RERERARAIAREEZ—
WARE A EMN B IR TEERTE S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EEE:E—%@F-I—:HE-G#
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REEATNESR (&)

Summarised financial information of material
associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

EXBEQNTANUHENRE

BRARKEEAREARNMBER B ES
SN o AT BB BRI RIRIRRE B M 75
o5 22 R P A I B 28 1 RIS SRR P R A

e AR DRSS RHARN L SR A T
e E YN

Truly HZ =REM

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-—hEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHBT

Current assets RENEE 937,721 1,378,644
Non-current assets EREEE 5,623,604 4,626,551
Current liabilities ViEIR=RE 1,987,344 2,255,650
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 2,784,811 1,473,902
Revenue Iz 65,590 -
Loss for the year NEEEBE (695,574) (89,446)

Other comprehensive (expense) REFHEME2E () KA

income for the year (4,629) 4,013
Total comprehensive expense for the year AN € &M 2% (700,203) (85,433)
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.

Summarised financial information of material
associate (continued)

Truly HZ (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

REZENFIMER (&)
EXBERTANUBRENRE (&)

EFRIEM (E
EIt RS E R AR S A R AR
B ARmEanREESRNT

2016 AONES)

—E-REF —ET—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET TFETT

Net assets of Truly HZ EREMNEEFE 1,789,170 2,275,643
Proportion of the Group’s ownership IR B A R =M B

interest in Truly HZ Fr B fERE s LL 171 53% 53%
Carrying amount of the Group's REBREFEMD

interest in Truly HZ HEmMEREE 948,260 1,206,091

Information of associate that is not material FTERNBE NTNER

BN B TR

The Group's share of profit (loss)

B B ST R

2016
—E—RE

2015
—ET—hHF
HK$'000
FHIT

HK$'000
TET

AEBRELEEN (BE)

from operations 606 (284)
The Group's share of total AEBEAEZEMBA (FAX) 8%
comprehensive income (expense) 606 (284)
Carrying amount of the Group's REBREE A RNERNREE
interest in the associate 17,000 17,636
ZE-REFFH o FEHEBERALTE 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FI s
ReMERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 « HZ_—Z—

]
NE+ZAE+—ALEE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

106

20. WJHEHERSE

2016 2015
—E-XF T RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiB Tt
Listed investments: EHRE

— Equity shares listed in Taiwan (note a) — R A& 2 #2500 (MisEa) - 59,190

— Equity shares listed in Hong Kong — REB LT 2 =R (D)
(note b) 14,693 16,881
14,693 76,071
Unlisted equity shares, at cost (note c) JE EmiEmsR D GRRAE) (HisEce) 18,624 18,624
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERRERSE (18,047) (18,047)
577 577
Total A} 15,270 76,648

Notes: MiEE -

(@) The investment represented equity interest in a company (a) HEREARE—HRAEEMKRIAHARRBRA
incorporated in Taiwan with its registered shares listed on the i ZARINBRNEREESFR ST LT
Taiwan Stock Exchange, which was stated at fair value. The fair WA FEBEVE - FTRAZHFNAFEE
value of listed equity securities was determined based on quoted BN EBEAZ SR THEEABETE ©
market bid price available from the relevant stock exchange. During ZIBEREBE-_E—XRFE+_A=+—81t
the year ended 31 December 2016, the investment was disposed FEHE - WHERUEEH97,293,0008 7T ° &
of and a gain of approximately HK$97,293,000 has been EZ-RAFTZA=+—HIEFE BER
recognised. A fair value loss of HK$52,296,000 had been AF(B{ERFIEH52,296,000/8 7T °
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2015.

(b)  The investment represent equity interest in a company with its (b) ZRBER—EARNRAER - ZARRRR
shares listed on the Stock Exchange, which is stated at fair value. BT BT WIRAFEBEE - WX
The fair value of listed equity security is determined based on $9"‘%E’J’“$F{Eiﬁﬁf\ﬁ%§* "Q%Fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ’ﬂ
quoted market bid price available from the relevant stock exchange. THEEAEBEE - BHE-_ZT—XXF+=-A
During the year ended 31 December 2016, impairment loss of =+—RHIEFE  BERREETE2,188000
HK$2,188,000 (2015: HK$22,274,000) has been recognised. BIL(ZZT—HF 22,274,000/ 7T) °

(c) The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued by () EZ?Qﬁ%EEI$&,‘:.*7*%*%AA§E%§§??E@3EJ:H€$§

private entities in Japan and Taiwan. The investments are stated at
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
directors had assessed the relevant recoverable amount and an
impairment loss of HK$7,547,000 has been recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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21. INVENTORIES 21. R

2016 2015

At —T-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FATT

Raw materials R 1,199,232 618,143
Work in progress TERR 762,342 170,524
Finished goods LUK fh 641,644 987,039

2,603,218 1,775,706

22. LOAN RECEIVABLE 22. BIRER
2016 AONES)
—E—RF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Interest-free loan receivable R BEKER 24,762 24,762
Less: allowance for loan receivable B U E FRBEE (24,762) (24,762)
The directors have assessed the expected future cash flows R-E—RNER_E—RF+_A=+—
to be generated and allowance for loan receivable was fully B ZERE&THEEHRBEEZRKIBER
provided against the carrying amount as at 31 December £ BEREREERSGHREINEREE -

2016 and 2015.

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EURRIA R H M EK*IA

2016 AONES)
—E—RE —E-hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Trade and bills receivables TEUWERTE & FENEE 6,992,502 4,713,490
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RERE A (11,941) (18,553)
6,980,561 4,694,937

Other receivables, H WA « e RIEN B
deposits and prepayment 541,655 309,198
Total trade and other receivables FEURBRTE N H fth FEUR SR IB 42 58 7,522,216 5,004,135
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 * HZE—ZE—XF+=-HA= J FE ]

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers. Included in trade and bills receivables
are bills receivables with the carrying amount of
HK$360,656,000 (2015: HK$530,561,000). The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and with a maturity period ranging
from 30 to 90 days.

Included in the other receivables is other PRC tax recoverable
of HK$394,231,000 (2015: HK$208,418,000).

The Group's trade and bills receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Denominated in HKD LB TTEHE
Denominated in Euro AR TEHE

23. BWIRARHEMEKRIE (2)

AEEGRTHESZEFLPNTINEWATE
ZIEEH - BRREREREEABIERT
B /360,656,000 w( = T — A F:
530,561,000 0) < BN EIE - 2B A
IR 2B REEBER N F30E90HTE -

H A U R TR B 4 L AT U ) R B R IR
394,231,000 7L(ZZF— 1% : 208,418,000
BTT)

AEBENFHEEEREEEIINZER
JIME 2 RUSRA R R REHIINT

2016 2015
—F-AF  —T-nF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FB7T
27,789 17,572

378 958

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, net of the allowance for doubtful debts at

RS B2 EYERIA R B R & (X s
RIZBEZAHED)) BARERBEZRE D
LI

the reporting date:

2015
“T-1F
Trade i Trade Bills

receivables receivables Total receivables receivables Total
EKEERE EUREE &5t ERERE EREE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT  TER TR TR TR TER

Within 60 days 60A M 4,260,786 219,799 4,480,585 3,079,486 366,465 3,445,951
61to 90 days 61£90H 859,364 75,325 934,689 639,364 99,142 738,506
More than 90 days i 90 A 1,499,755 65532 1,565,287 445,526 64,954 510,480

6,619,905 360,656 6,980,561 4,164,376 530,561 4,694,937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FAHBERME

For the year ended 31 Decembbr2016 . ﬁffﬂ?—/\iﬁ‘l' A= ‘|’ HIEFE

— S i B /

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTiNUED)  23. FEURRRIAR HtfEWRRIE (&)

REMTAFHEFR  AEESFEEER

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed

the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit
rating limits for each customer. Limits attributed to customers
are reviewed once a year. 78% (2015: 88%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired having
settlement subsequent to the reporting date and with no past
history of defaults in payment.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,474,892,000 (2015:
HK$510,216,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade and bills receivables which are past
due but not impaired

FZREEZEMEESEFZEEFER
BB TREFZEERBEEFESE K- R
MEBLEER 78%(ZZF—HF :88%)
ZEWBRIE R BHNRE - BiBATEE
RECEE

AEB2EBEEESGANBRELAR

M {& 51,474,892,0008 T ( — T — HF:
510,216,000 70) 2 FEUER K + ZZERIER
WEAD B MAREEEERTESEXR
FEAZESBNEATRE - B ANEET
EELRERBRE AEBVERZSSE
R (EE R o

CEMERBREZERRARERRE
RRER

2016 2015
—EB-XRE C—T—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 60 days 60 B A 970,595 418,897
61 to 90 days 612908 256,731 20,854
More than 90 days i@ H 247,566 70,465
Total 4aE8 1,474,892 510,216

In determining the recoverability of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables, the Group consider the credit history
including default or delay in payments, settlement records
and aging analysis of the trade receivables. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision
required in excess of the allowance already made.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has outstanding trade
receivables from two customers with an aggregate amount
of HK$1,070,117,000 of which HK$1,030,270,000 are past
due but not impaired. Subsequent to 31 December 2016,
HK$516,048,000 has been settled and the remaining balance
of HK$554,069,000 would be settled in late March and April
2017 according to the repayment schedule agreed with these
customers.

A

TS FE FE UK BR TR S B M R R e EL A FE M R OR
ZAIEER - AEEEeEBREREZ(E
BEEL(BREERMNR  ERCEHELIRE D
1) Bt EERR/EBERE - SIELEBR
EFREE 2 EERE -

R-E—R"F+-_A=+—8 A&£EEW
HEPHR 2 EBWERTEA $£1,070,117,000
T - H1,030,270,0008 T AE B HE
ARE - R_T—XR"E+_A=+—82
% - 516,048,000/ L& B E - i & £
554,069,000 B T RIBHZERFPIHE 2
BERREERIIN_ZT—tF=AEKRNA
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANY
e M HmRME '

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EEE:E—%@F-I—:HE-};%EEE i

FEU AR IR R Hofth FE M 3R IR (42)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An allowance was provided on doubtful debts due from trade
and other receivables and the movement are as follows:

23.

3 M R TR e L R W R IR 2 P MR Bl
RRYE - BREFNT

2016
—E—RE

2015
—ET—hF
HK$'000
T

HK$"000
FTET

Balance at beginning of the year FE L 18,553 8,212
Impairment losses recognised on CDREW R IBIER 2 B EE B

receivables 1,667 15,927
Reversal of impairment losses Ok FE W GRIB TSR 2 R BB 18

recognised on receivables (4,103) -
Amounts written off as uncollectible WisH A~ eI Y el 2 BRI (4,176) (5,586)
Balance at end of the year FIEER 11,941 18,5653

24. TEEMTIA

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets Liabilities
EE =K
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-—AF —T-1HF ZT-—RF —FTLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E F#ET THIT F#&x T
Foreign currency swaps — $NE s HR (i) 27,894 6,265 21,158 42,571
Structured foreign 4 U N HR A
currency options (i) - - 64,387 -
27,894 6,265 85,545 42,571
Notes: Mz -
(i) Foreign currency swaps (i) SNE $5 HR

The Group has entered into certain cross currency swap contracts
to hedge against the appreciation of Australian dollars ("AUD")
against USD and the depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB") against
HKD for certain agreed periods of time. The Group and the
respective banks would settle interest payment on a gross basis
on monthly or quarterly basis. The Group will then exchange
principal by installments.

(ii) Structured foreign currency options

The Group entered into certain structured foreign currency options
contracts with various banks to hedge against the appreciation of
Japanese Yen ("JPY") against USD and the depreciation of RMB
against HKD for an agreed period of time. The Group and the bank
will settle on a gross basis with reference to the difference
between the spot rate of JPY against USD and RMB against HKD
and the strike price on the predetermined settlement date as per
the contract. Certain of these options include a knock-out provision
whereby the contract will automatically be terminated in
accordance with the terms set out in the contract.
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25.

26.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

Except for the amount due from an associate of
approximately HK$455,920,000 (2015: HK$768,600,000) as at
31 December 2016 which is unsecured, interest bearing at
4.35% (2015: 2.5% to 4.85%) per annum and repayable on
demand, the remaining balances of the Group are derived
from normal business activities and are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The amount is neither past
due nor impaired.

Before offering any new loan to an associate, the Group will
assess the associate’s credit quality and the usage of loan by
the associate. The recoverability of the loan is reviewed
throughout the year. The amount is repayable upon request
for repayment, therefore, the balance is neither past due nor
impaired. In order to minimise credit risk, management of the
Group has monitored the repayment ability of the associate
continuously.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

25. EBELATIRIA

BRR-ZBE—RE+ZA=+—BAHY
455,920,000;87t(—Z— A : 768,600,000
HEIT) 2 RIS N B A A S IR
MZEA3B% (—ZFE—HF:25%E485%)
TR RBIREREEI  REBHSKESRY
BE—RESES BBERR 28 REA
BRENREE - BRKBAL R BHLRIE -

B S R BB &R - NEE R
ML RNRZEEERRBERRNERA
®e REEFEHSEENERZTKDIE
[ - REFRBRBRER - FERLKE
HgoRfE - RREEERR  AEEEERE
FBERME NE 2 BN -

26. EMHBVITHER BITHERASL

BALANCES AND CASH
2016 2015
—E—ARE —ET—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Cash on hand and in bank Re MIRTTHET 2,213,908 1,785,779
Short-term bank deposits EHAIRI TR 239,715 269,421
2,453,623 2,055,200
Restricted bank deposits SR BRI T K 85,303 72,656
2,538,926 2,127,856

The Group's bank balances and deposits that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

JPY
=]
HK$'000

TET

+-A=+—H 148,125
As at 31 December 2015 WZZE—h%F
+-A=+—H 7,038

AEBNFHEEERNEEREAINZEE
SMEZ RITHEEREREIIAT

HKD usD RMB
BT E ARM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TAT
424,605

65,078 246,042

213,288 95,088 115,201
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26.

27.

112

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

Bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at fixed and
variable rates respectively which ranged from 0.01% to 11%
(2015: 0.01% to 2%) per annum.

Restricted bank deposits is to secure bills payables and are
therefore classified as current assets. The restricted bank
deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.75% (2015: 1.85%) per
annum. The restricted bank deposits will be released upon
settlement of bills payables.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Leasehold properties in the PRC
ZHEME

R HENETBERFAE

26. ERFBITHER RITRERRE W)

ROTEREBTEESNZEE RN T
001 % ZEM%(ZZE—AF : 001% £2%)
ZEBFFERTE -

SR HIERTTIF A AR IR RN 2205 - EE
DEARDEE - XRHRITTFRIRE T F
FE175% (ZE—FHEFE : 1.85%)5t8 - %
R HISRITIF S R E S IR A H R IR o

27. BFHEFEDHEE

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—AF
HK$'000

FHT

HK$"000
FTET

126 683

The directors of the Company approved the disposal of
certain properties which were previously developed as staff
quarters. Leasehold properties with a carrying amount of
HK$63,411,000 had been reclassified from prepaid lease
payment to properties, plant and equipment in prior years, of
which HK$538,000 (2015: HK$1,788,000) was sold in 2016
for consideration of HK$1,403,000 (2015: HK$3,755,000).
During the year ended 31 December 2016, a gain on disposal
of approximately HK$865,000 (2015: HK$1,967,000) has been
recognised. The directors expect the remaining leasehold
properties will be sold in the coming year.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

28. FE(IARIA R HfthFE T RRIR

RBERRIRERBMZ20 2 EARENE
NERBZEREDOMT

2016 2015

—E-Rf “T-AfF

Trade Bills Trade Bills
payables  payables Total payables payables Total
EERE EAEE &% ERERE ENEER Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THL THL THT
Within 60 days 60EA 4,303,036 737,042 5,040,078 2,987,179 912,587 3,899,766
61 to 90 days 61£90H 639,011 428,390 1,067,401 441,042 2,817 443,859
More than 90 days #iE90 A 560,023 - 560,023 437,304 - 437,304
5502,070 1,165,432 6,667,502 3,865,525 915,404 4,780,929

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 60 to EEERNEEHRNTF60E90H - KEH

90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
time frame.

Included in other payables are sales deposit received with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$405,818,000 (2015:
HK$234,668,000), accruals of operating expenses with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$366,309,000 (2015:
HK$319,099,000), payables for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment with aggregate amount of
HK$81,611,000 (2015: HK$69,637,000), government grants
of HK$11,515,000 (2015: HK$13,881,000) and dividend
payable of HK$59,398,000 (2015: HK$59,323,000).

The Group's trade and bills payables that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

Denominated in HKD LB TTEHE
Denominated in JPY AR E&HE

HEREE ZHHEREZBER - AHBERR
EEHIN A RAFA -

b 5 BB B B 42 8RB A 405,818,000
BT(ZZT—FH4E : 234,668,000/ 7T) 22
s &% - R {E 5 366,309,000 7T

—ZT— R4 319,099,000 7T ) 2 FEET R
BB HEA81,611,0008T(ZE—H
% 169,637,000/ 70) ZHBIEME - BE
N & 2 FEATRUE ~ 11,615,000 (=&
— F 4 113,881,000 70) 2 BT 2 B &
59,398,000 7t ( — ZE — F 4F : 59,323,000
PBIT) 2 RS o

AEBENABEEERDREER N 2GR
SME 2 BRI R ENREHIOT

2016 2015
—B-XE —T-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB Fit
97,338 154,439
336,471 375,722
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29. BITRAMMER - MIEH

For the year ended 31 December 2016 » HZE—=F

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS,

UNSECURED
2016 AONES)
—E—-XF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Bank loans RITER 4,894,575 3,458,620
Bills discounted with recourse E;E%T%Zﬁfﬁ%‘%ﬁ- 5,541 36,469
Trust receipt loans EREWEER 2,027,760 1,123,187
Other loans EMEK 299,484 264,333
7,227,360 4,882,609

The Group's bank and other borrowings that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

AEENAHEEEBNREERAINZER
JMEZ RITREMEEFHIIT

Denominated in HKD B TTEHE 4,382,209 2,663,581
Denominated in JPY LAB E&HE 89,118 95,354
Denominated in AUD LURTTAHE 468,437 600,642
Carrying amount repayable*: FEfSBREE * -
Within one year R—FR 3,794,507 2,882,553
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRBBRMERN
two years 1,008,154 1,240,057
More than two years, but not exceeding  FIEEEERAER
five years 2,424,699 759,999
7,227,360 4,882,609
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : SR RBAEBET Z—FRW
under current liabilities EIHRRIE (3,794,507) (2,882,553)
Amount due after one year shown under  FIRIERBI A EH 2 —E1%
non-current liabilities EIEAzRIE 3,432,853 2,000,056
* The amount due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out * ZIMFRIETYRIRER B 3R 165 3 2 FATE AR B A

in loan agreements.

The Group’s bank borrowings included fixed-rate borrowings
of approximately HK$139,762,000 (2015: nil) which carry
interest ranged from 1.02% to 3.92% per annum. The
remaining Group's borrowings are variable-rate borrowings
which carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR"), London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"), the
People’s Bank of China’s benchmark rate or Bank-Bill Swap
Rate ("BBSW") plus certain basis points. Interest is repriced
every three months and the range of effective interest rates
isat 1.92% to 3.36% (2015: 0.33% to 3.31%) per annum.
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30.

31.

BONDS PAYABLE 30. EfHR%

In July 2016, the Group issued the first tranche of domestic RIE—RNFt A KEERTASRTEE
corporate bonds (the “Bonds”) with an aggregate principle A R #750,000,000 T E — L EARNEH
amount of RMB750,000,000. The Bonds bear fixed interest ([EHF]) - BHEZFFEETE AE58%
at 5.8% per annum and is payable annually each year. The ERB—K o BERFINEBETHH LT -
Bonds are listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange and will RZTE-_—F+AZIH -

mature in July 2021.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 31. REREAEE AR
For the purpose of presenting in the consolidated statements BRNGEAEBRARERT RS B 2Em
of financial position, the following is the analysis of the S VIEERIBEAEKRSITWOT ¢

deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

2016 AONNS)
—E—-REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIARE 72,674 60,068
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBEE (8,783) (8,5613)
63,891 51,655
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) EAFERATFEANBERNEZRLENIE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BE(EE) REEZFHNOT :
prior years:
Allowance
for
Accelerated receivables Undistributed
tax and profits of PRC
depreciation inventories  subsidiaries
i R
INEBE FEW R ARRDE
il REERE bt kel
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx BT BT THEI
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—RAF—HF—H 15,802 (8,867) 32,781 39,716
Reversal of deferred tax liability Ik F {4 B ELEAE
upon distribution of profits HEEE - - (10,069) (10,069)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss REERZET (KE)
for the year X3 (2,710) 354 24,264 21,908
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RF
+=ZA=+—H 13,092 (8,513) 46,976 51,555
Reversal of deferred tax liability upon 43 )& i 71|14 8 [ iR A&
distribution of profits HIBBE - - (12,202) (12,202)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss REEEREFT (ER)
for the year X3 (1,100) (270) 25,908 24,538
At 31 December 2016 RZB-R"E+ZRA=1t—H 11,992 (8,783) 60,682 63,891
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31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 31. RERERE AR/E)
(CONTINUED)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RREBHER AEBZAHARE
losses of HK$291,768,000 (2015: HK$131,820,000) available & $#8291,768,000% t( — T — 7 F:
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has 131,820,000 7T ) Al AV SE AR s A1) © B
been recognised in respect of such losses due to the RARBEEETRICEFIR « Bt W EZSE
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax EBIEEREERIBEE - KERZHIFERE
losses may be carried forward indefinitely except for skl EPRHAAEE - R RIS R AR S A]
HK$36,011,000 (2015: HK$34,828,000) in the tax jurisdiction 8 R F 236,011,000 t(ZE—HF:
of the PRC which may be carried forward for five years. 34,828,000/ 7T) 4 °
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BIEBEPRPRMCEMGHE BTN\ F
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC —A—HEE PR RMBQFERR G
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. At 31 December FTERAIIEBEMNTEINR - RZZE—X
2016, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the +ZA=1+—H ESEUEHERY  TE
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary HHERB AT 2 8N EEEE
differences attributable to accumulated profits of PRC 2,942,717,000% t( = T — & F:
subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,942,717,000 (2015: 2,453,154,000 % 70 ) fE R IE L IE B % - IR
HK$2,453,154,000) as the Group is able to control the timing A 27 5 Bl A B 0 1 1) 155 [0 AR 2 RE Y B
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable - VB RIBE T ETE R AR R I R 258 o
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. B&E
Number
of shares Amount
B A S
HK$'000
FHIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 per share HREHEE0.02 8 L2 ik
Authorised: ETE
Balance at 1 January 2015, 31 December RZZ—HF—HF—H "
2015 and 31 December 2016 —E-RFtTZA=T—HR
—E-REt+ZA=1+—H
2 R 5,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRI
Balance at 1 January 2015, 31 December WR_-_Z—FF—F—H -
2015 and 31 December 2016 —ZEZ-RF+-A=t—8BK
—ZE-RE+ZA=+—H
ok -7 2,907,099,398 58,142
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or FER - BEARFMBAREE  HENE
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the BERARAE ETHES °
year.
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33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 29, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with the capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues of the Company and share buy-backs as well as
raising of bank borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
prior year.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

33.

34.

BEERER

AREBEETENEENRRASEANNER
BERELE  REEREERREERTY
RIRERZAE R

AEBNEARBRER FHE(BHEME29
FIRBEZEE  KHRReRRESEHERE)
Ko Bt (BAR D BT R ) 4B -

ARREETHECHEARE - EFEE
BEARRAREEARRB @R  XHEBX
R~ BITARRBFAAD S BN A K
EERTEETHHEREAREE -

G [E RO B RE SRR ) L AT — R AR

el

o

EMTIAR
a. 2SBMIESE

2016 AONES)
—E—XRE —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T

Financial assets THEE

Loans and receivables (including Bk EBGIE(BIERE R

cash and cash equivalents) REEHEIEAER) 10,074,212 7,633,438
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 15,270 76,648
Derivative financial instruments TESRT A 27,894 6,265
10,117,376 7,716,351

Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B R 14,954,989 9,714,690
Derivative financial instruments TESRT A 85,545 42,571

-z
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

118

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, available-for-sale investments,
trade and other payables, amount due to an associate,
bank and other borrowings, bonds payable and
derivative financial instruments. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the financial
risks of changes in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates and change in prices (see below).

(i)  Foreign currency risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies which are
different from USD and RMB, the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

The carrying amounts of foreign currency risk
arising from foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

34. &I R(#®)

b.

cREREERBRRBE

AEBEIZeRITABTBRITER
kBEE - ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁl’r@ﬁ%%?ﬂﬁ*
e B 2 DR RR - AT ERE
J?@ETHEEIE&ﬁ{MEﬁ%ﬁIE AR
RAFIE - ROTREMBEE - BHE
FURTESMTHE -ZFE2MT A
ZFHIER B IAM EEE R -

FEzRSeRITAZRARKLEREZS

REEROBREHEN T EEESERE
&Eﬁiﬁﬁ&%ﬁkﬁﬁ © DARER Ko B B R0
BB o

5 Ak

NEE 7 ¥ BAK N R K IMEE
RBEESFERIARERESER
(RT3 -

S 5 L B
REBZETRHANERE
ZEINE BB B AR E
BETTRARKINNER -

(i)

RBER - UINEFEZEEE
EREEABEELS ZINERKR 2
BREEDT

Liabilities Assets
=Fi BE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HF ZE—XRE — R4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT FHT F&TT
HKD HBIT 4,482,782 2,818,021 450,782 230,861
JPY | 425,589 471,077 148,125 7,039
Euro BT 215 - 378 959
RMB AR - - 246,126 115,202
AUD SEIT 468,437 600,642 1 -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group's profit after taxation for the
year in response to reasonably possible change in
the functional currency i.e. USD to the relevant
currencies which the Group have significant
exposure at the reporting date. Since HKD are
pegged to USD under the Linked Exchange Rate
System, the management does not expect
significant foreign currency exposure in relation to
the exchange rate fluctuation between HKD and
USD. The Group mainly exposes to foreign
currency risks other than USD.

strengthens

(weakens)

JPY AlE
Euro BT
RMB AR
AUD SRIT

34. €M TH (&)
b. £RERSEEERBEEE)

W5 R ()
(i) SpEEER ()
BREDT

TERETHRNEEY (BIET)
HBAEENREAEHEEAR
B AEEA IR A B
B MEBAKEBEAFERIE
B FTEA 2 A EE) - AR
B EERGES TEETE
o EREWTEHTEREERE
JU B 3E T (B R &) 7 B RSN @,
M o ANEE B I BAKE ETTIAIMNN
ke 2 R o

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF

usb Increase uSD Increase
(decrease) strengthens  (decrease)

in profit  (weakens) in profit

ETHE g bl EAE A N
(R18) (@ 2) (B21E) Rk 2)
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

10% 23,537 14% 56,215
(10%) (23,537) (14%) (56,215)
4% (6) 12% (96)
(4%) 6 (12%) 96
5% (10,439) 6% (5,551)

(5%) 10,439 (6%) 5,651
1% 3,974 11% 57,632
(1%) (3,974) (11%) (57,632)

As set out in note 24, at the end of the reporting
period, the Group had outstanding foreign
currency swaps and structured foreign currency
options which also expose the Group to currency
fluctuation risks.

FINHEE 24 FTEL - MEEHIR -
AEBEARFRZINERE - &
BHNE g - RSB EH I
PR B o
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

120

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

For the foreign currency swaps with translations
denominated in AUD outstanding at 31 December
2016, if HKD was strengthened against AUD by
1% (2015: 11%), the post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would decrease by
approximately HK$3,978,000 (2015:
HK$57,442,000), if HKD was weakened against
AUD by 1% (2015: 11%), the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2016 would increase
by approximately HK$3,978,000 (2015:
HK$58,281,000).

For foreign currency swaps with transactions
denominated in RMB outstanding at 31 December
2016, if HKD was strengthened against RMB by
5%, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2016 would increase by approximately
HK$11,859,000, if HKD was weakened against
RMB by 5%, the post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2016 would decrease by
approximately HK$14,392,000.

For structured foreign currency options with
transactions denominated in JPY outstanding at
31 December 2016, if USD was strengthened
against JPY by 10%, the post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2016 would decrease
by approximately HK$58,086,000, if USD was
weakened against JPY by 10%, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
increase by approximately HK$44,805,000.

For structured foreign currency options with
transactions denominated in RMB outstanding at
31 December 2016, if HKD was strengthened
against RMB by 5%, the post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2016 would decrease
by approximately HK$1,204,000, if HKD was
weakened against RMB by 5%, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
increase by approximately HK$472,000.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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34. &I R(#®)

b. £REREEEERBEE)

5 BB (42)

(i) SRR (4E)
BRRE DT (&)
MR —E—XRF+-_A=+—8H
ZARFEBITTIMEIRER - WE T
HBETHEI(ZE—HE:
M%) BE-_ZTE—XF+_-A

—t+—BIEFEZBRBRERFE
A #)3,978,0008 T (—E—Hh
% 157,442,000 7T ) ¢ KB T
HBEBITRZEI%(ZZE—RF:
11%) BHE_ZE—~F+_A
=t+—BIFEZBRERRTA
#AN493,978,0008 T (—E—H
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits, amount
due from an associate, fixed-rate bank borrowing
and bonds payable. The Group is also exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
balances and variable-rate bank and other
borrowings (see notes 26 and 29 for details). The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
LIBOR arising from the Group’s HKD denominated
borrowings, the fluctuation of the People’'s Bank
of China’s benchmark rate arising from the RMB
denominated borrowings and the fluctuation of
BBSW arising from the Group’s AUD denominated
borrowings. The management considers the
exposure to interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances is insignificant due to the low interest
rate. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contract to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, the management of
the Company will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point
(2015: 100 basis point) increase or decrease is
used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2015:
100 basis point) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease/increase by HK$60,124,000
(2015: decrease/increase by HK$41,190,000).

34. &I R(#®)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

122

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Other price risks
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in listed equity securities
classified under available-for-sale investments.

Price risk sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% (2015: 15%) higher/
lower, investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$2,291,000 (2015:
HK$11,497,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to perform an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group had concentration of credit risk as 30%
(2015: 15%) of total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor, which is a company
located in the PRC.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’'s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. @I R (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. £REREEBERBEKE)

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

With respect of credit risk arising from the loan
receivable and other receivables, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each receivable at the end of
each reporting period and allowance for loan receivable
and other receivables are made. The management of
the Company considers that the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from default of the loan receivable is
limited as the amount has been fully provided for. The
Group manages its credit risk by closely monitoring the
other receivables with and follow up action being taken
to recover the overdue receivables. Other receivables
consist of a large number of counterparties which do
not give rise to significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk
The Group's liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company.

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
its current and expected liquidity requirements regularly
and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from reputable financial
institutions to meet the Group's liquidity requirements
in the short and long term. The management of the
Company also monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents adequate to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flow. To the extent that interest flows are floating rates,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

124

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

In addition, the following table details the Group's
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. The liquidity
analysis for the Group's derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities
are essential for an understanding of the timing of the

cash flows of derivatives.

34. @MTR &)

b.

CREMREERBRRBEE)
REBEEERE)
BEAN - TREAIAKEREITES B

TRAREZRBESD

DA e TRINR

BENRBEEE 2 TETA KR
MARREBEmMEE - KEBEITE
CRTAZRBESSMIIRESL
ﬂ%aﬁ%’%E$MﬁﬁEw%D
# 'JHHEHTE/\H%% METARERE

ZEHEETNE

Weighted Total
average undiscounted Carrying
effective 0to3 4-6 7-12 2-3 Over cash  amount at
interest rate months months months years 3years flows 31 December
Rt=h
ik 237 FERE Si=Ff]
ERflz 2E=EF DEAER tEt=fiA RE=E BBA=F nESE ZBEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL T TiEn Tin ThR TAT
2016 ZE-RE
Non-derivative instruments 374 T8
Trade and other payables  JEMERIE &Hﬁﬂﬁﬁ 8 - 6878155 - - - - - 6878155 6,878,155
Amount due to an associate  fEEE LA - 2,018 - - - - - 2,018 2,018
Fived interest rate bank T8 ﬁ?fﬂag
borrowings 312 39,660 990 103,173 - - - 143,823 139,762
Variable interest rate bank and 78 /7S RAMEE
other borrowings 278 2,627,363 468,212 728,403 1,140,982 930,399 1,668,816 7,564,175 7,087,598
Bonds payable EfiES 6 - - 48372 48372 48312 910589 1,055,705 827,456
9,567,196 469,202 879,948 1,189,354 978,11 2579405 150663876 14,954,989
Derivatives — gross 14 - 2BLE
settlement
Foreign currency swaps NERE
— inflow —HA 37,612 37,369 55,634 55,096 - - 185,711 184,769
— outflow i (43,681) (43,658) (62,651) (56,988) = - (206,978) (205,927)
(6,069) (6,289) (7,017) (1,892) - - (21,267) (21,158)
Structured foreign currency & SNEEHE
options
—inflow —HA - - - - - - - -
— outflow — it (17,036) (17,909) (27,848) (2,067) = = (64,860) (64,387)
(17,036) (17,909) (27,848) (2,067) = - (64,860) (64,387)
(23,105) (24198) (34,865) (3,959) = - (86,127) (85,545)
2015 -§-%F
Non-derivative instruments 374 T8
Trade and other payables  JERTEEIE R B EM 0B - 4832081 - - - - - 4832081 4832081
Variable interest rate bank and ZEHTEE RAMEE
other borrowings 23 1,528,055 331,448 1,106,469 1,285,751 777,697 - 5029420 4882609
6,360,136 331,448 1,106,469 1,285,751 777,697 - 9,861,501 9,714,690
Derivatives — gross fix - 2B4E
settlement
Foreign currency swaps INEEE
—inflow —iA 20,636 20,352 58,061 130,125 54,325 - 283,489 281,382
—outflow — it (25,302) (25,356) (69,274) (149,585) (56,862) - (326,379) (323,953)
(4,666) 5,004) (11,229) (19,460) (2,837) - 42,890) (42,571)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

C.

Fair value measurements of financial c.
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

(i)  Fairvalue of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis
The Group's available-for-sale investments and
derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined.

Fair value as at
RAT RSz AT EE
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
“E-nF “E-nf
t=A=t-A

Financial assets/
financial liabilities

TREE/SRAR

Fair value
hierarchy
AFHE
BRER

34. €M TH (&)
ERMIAC AV EEE

Ut B 5 4R 447 B4 o L A T 2 S TR )
SMEAERSMEBAZ ATEESZE
%o

) EEEEUATEEHEZAE
MeMEERGMAR2ATHE
f
RERE K - A EE 2 T
ERARITESBTANRAT
BENE - TRABMMARS
HESHEERSBEEL AT
Bz ER -

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

EDEREEGARE

Available-for-sale Assets Assets Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
investments — HK$15,270,000 —HK$76,648000  E1# KBTS 2 RE
ARHERE BE BE
— 15,270,000 ¢ — 76,648,000 % 7T
Foreign currency swaps ~ Assets Assets Level 2 Discounted cash flow method
(Note 1) — HK$27,894,000 — HK$6,265,000 F2 ReREMmRE
SMERE (M) BE BE
— 27,894,000 T — 6,265,000 7
Liabilities Liability The key inputs are foreign exchange spot
— HK$21,158,000 — HK$42,571,000 and forward rates and interest rate curves.
= af& FEHAEBRINER G REHHE
- 21,158,000 1T — 42,571,000/ ARFIEHE -
Structured foreign currency  Liabilities Nil Level 3 Monte Carlo Simulation Method
options (Note 2) — HK$64,387,000 & FIR SHREEERE
ERSNESE (2 AE
— 64,387,000
The key inputs are spot exchange rate on
the date of valuation, strike rate, time to
maturity, notional amount, payout amount
for each settlement, risk-free rate of JPY
against USD and RMB against HKD and
the average implied volatility of the
exchange rate as at valuation date.
FEGANEARHERHASER . 517
Flx BB 2528 SREERL
THEE  BERETRARBLAT
ERBNE R RERRER
THREKIE «
ZE-REFFH o FEHEBERALTE 125
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

126

C.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)
Note 1: The discounted cash flow method uses only
observable market inputs.

Note 2: For foreign currency options with transactions
denominated in JPY, if the average implied volatility
of the exchange rate is 10% higher/lower and held
other variables constant, the Group's post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
decrease by HK$794,000/increase by HK$733,000.
Due to the terms of the contracts, changes in the
inputs adopted in the valuation model would lead to
asymmetric changes in the fair values.

For foreign currency options with transactions
denominated in RMB, if the average implied
volatility of the exchange rate is 5% higher/lower
and held other variables constant, the Group's post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease by HK$157,000/increase by
HK$8,000. Due to the terms of the contracts,
changes in the inputs adopted in the valuation
model would lead to asymmetric changes in the fair
values.

There is no transfer between different levels of
the fair value hierarchy for the current period.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(but fair value disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c.

instruments (continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(but fair value disclosures are required) (continued)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 and 2015

34. €M TH (&)

TMIAZAFEETEE)

(i) FIREHFHEUQXTEEFE
ZEMEEREMARZATE
B (HEAEHATEERSE)(HE)

RIF-—AREFRZF—HF+Z
A=Z+—HZ A FEEE &E

Level 1 Total
F14 &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TER TET
Financial assets CRHEE
Available-for-sale AHRHERE
investments 15,270 - - 15,270
Foreign currency swaps SN - 27,894 = 27,894
Total EH) 15,270 27,894 = 43,164
Financial liabilities tREE
Foreign currency swaps HNE 2 R - 21,158 - 21,158
Structured foreign currency &5 = H1\E ER
options - - 64,387 64,387
Total 4% - 21,158 64,387 85,545

2015
—T-0F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R W R Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr BT BT BT
|
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale AHHELE
investments 76,648 - - 76,648
Foreign currency swaps HNE 12 HR - 6,265 - 6,265
Total 5 76,648 6,265 - 82,913
Financial liabilities cREE
Foreign currency swaps HNE 2 A - 42,571 - 42571
Total At - 42,571 - 42,571
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. €M TH (&)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of SHMEEEIRATEEFEZLHE
financial liabilities

Structured
foreign
currency
options
#EX
SMEHARE
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—mE—A—H 6,641
Net settlement HEE R (7,289
Fair value loss charged to profit or loss RPNz A EEEIE
— realised —BE5 648
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-_A=+—H -
Net settlement HEE R (25)
Fair value loss charged to profit or loss RPNk AFEEEE
— realised —B &5 25
— unrealised —REIR 64,387
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+H=1+—H 64,387
The total loss of approximately HK$64,412,000 (2015: AFE ARt 2 #E518#)64,412,00078 7T
HK$648,000) for the year included in profit or loss represent “ZT % 6480008 7T) FEEAATHE
the total fair value loss related to structured foreign currency fbi8es | 2 MRS RIS iR TV MNE HIHE
options held at the end of the reporting period that are B2 AFEERIRERE -

included in “Other gains and losses”.
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35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

35.

EERNRR
FEBEREBA

RER - AEBEBRBETAIRHEHELEHAOR
THIHARR B A 2 AR SR AR R A A9 SRR A
T

2016
S

2015
—T—hHE
HK$'000
FHET

HK$°000
FERT

Within one year —FR 7,367 8,162
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF (BEEEME) 4,171 1,554
11,538 9,716

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms of two to four years with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$10,323,000 (2015: HK$11,350,000), which was derived
from letting of staff quarters included in the Group’s property,
plant and equipment.

At the reporting date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

REENNFTEARBEREE TRIZNE
MENZES BHOZHEERMSMED
FoUREEESE

rEEERBEA

KNEZHE Z WERS WA A 10,323,000
T(ZZ—HF 11,350,000 7T) © ZEFH
SWARBEBEAFALEEYE - BE &K
HBrzEIRE -

R#ER - AEECD NI RRKERLN
REMPRIZEK

2016 AONES)
—E-XRF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
|
Within one year —FR 699 438
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFERF(RREEREMT) 1,204 1,324
1,903 1,762
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36.

37.

38.

130

—RETZAZ+—HLEE

COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but

MBI E - BE KR

2016
—E-RE

2015
—hF
HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
TR

not provided in the consolidated financial B ]41{BRELZS

statements in respect of acquisition of B RERPBE

property, plant and equipment BARYH 1,330,424 190,239
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 37. BFiEFIETR

All of the Group’s Hong Kong employees are required to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is
required to contribute 5%, while the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their salaries to the scheme to the
maximum of HK$1,500 (2015: HK$1,500) per month for each
employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees to the state-
managed retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At the end of the reporting period, government grants of
HK$11,515,000 (2015: HK$13,881,000) were included in
trade and other payables, to subsidise the acquisition of
property, plant and machinery for scientific research
development. The amount has been treated as deferred
income and will be transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. This policy resulted in a credit to
profit or loss in the current year of HK$1,490,000 (2015:
HK$1,802,000).

Incentive subsidies of HK$11,002,000 (2015: HK$51,872,000)
have been received in the current year to encourage the
operation of a PRC subsidiary for the development on export
sales and advance technology. There were no specific
conditions attached to the grants and, therefore, the Group
recognised the grants in profit or loss upon receipt.
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NEtEIF B 2 BEEERRAZETEIEL AR

e
A ©

By T 2R ARG

RBEER - XEBAELEDREYE - K
BRI\ HARBERZBUNTERN
11,515,000/ ;. (= Z — A F : 13,881,000
BIT) T A BT BRIE R EAth FE S 5RIB © 52 KX
HEHSRAREWANIZEEEE 2 {F A
FHIEEEER o  LBCREBMAFEET AR

W2 A1,490,0008 L (ZE— R
1,802,000 7T) ©
RAE BB BT A5 B P BT B A Bl I

¥ RAUERM A ENERMF DO E)R
8511,002,000% 7t( = T — & F:
51,872,000 7T ) ° 3% S E LW M E
&4 Al AEBRKDIBFEBRPER
=y 3z




39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i

(ii)

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with an associate.

Associate
PN

Truly HZ
BN

Nature of transaction

XHMHE

Sales

HE
Purchase

i

Interest income

A BHA

Research and development income

WA

Rental income
WA

Car rental income

AEESEA

39. MEALXS

FA AEEEBERBRILATR

5

2016
o

HK$°000
FERT

1,282

56,686

17,452

120

2015
—ET—hF
HK$'000
T T

10,701

3,147

120

13

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year were as follows:

AEEEFRAEMERERBKREZ

BT

2016
—EB-AF

HK$'000
FERT

2015
—E-hHF
HK$'000
T

Short-term benefits CHIE A 40,109 40,021
Post-employment benefits BEES 212 T 131 136
40,240 40,157

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

EEREFEITHRABZHITY i # M
ZEE2EMARALTSBERE

Eo

NEFH o FEABEBRERLR 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ¢
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SeMBERERME %FEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EEE:E—,‘—QF—I::HE
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. EAFEEMBELFEH
OF THE COMPANY

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) MIBARZ—REHR
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the REERARNEBNMB AR BN
reporting period are set out below. N

Nominal value of
issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation share capital/ Proportion
or registration/ registered capital ownership interest
operation BRTKAZ  held by the Company
Name of subsidiary MR LR BERRA/ AARBEZ Principal activities
HEARERE EXREH M EAREE PR LAl TEEHR
2016 2015
22X —T-IfF
Truly Electronics Hong Kong HK$1,000,010 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Manufacturing Limited B 1,000,010 7T calculators and electronic
EANEFAERAR components
ETHARRETARES
Truly Instrument Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Trading of electric tooth brush
ERMESERAT & 10087 and health care products

THTRIREARRERES

Truly Semiconductors Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Trading of LCD products
EAFERERRA Bt 1,000%7T REEETSEDE S
Truly Opto-electronics Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 85.4% 85.4% Trading of compact camera
ERHEERAT & 1,000,000/ 7T module and touch panel
HEAREEREERER
g5
Truly Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$872,894 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
ENIEAERAR B 872,894 75 7C components
EFIHES
Truly (USA) Inc. United States US$20,000 100% 100%  Marketing of electronic
of America 20,0003 7T calculators
E3E B ERMSEH
EMNETFERAR* PRC US$64,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture of electronic
H 64,000,000% 7T calculators and electronic
components

RERTHERRET LA
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. EAFEEMBLEEH (&)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) MEBARZ—MRER (&)

Nominal value of
issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation share capital/ Proportion
or registration/ registered capital ownership interest
operation CETRHZ  held by the Company
Name of subsidiary AR ER, LERRA KPRBEZ Principal activities
i) PNERCE £ 3 HEMEXREE PR L FEEH
2016 2015
Z2-AE —FT-IF
ERFERER AR PRC US$498,300,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of LCD
FE 498,300,000 T products

RERRRRRSERD

ERERCLE) BB AR PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture of electric
H 1,000,000% T toothbrush and health
care products
HERHTRREAREER
ERXERHERAT PRC RMB340,000,000 85.4% 85.4% Manufacture of compact
H AR camera module and touch
340,000,000 7T panel
MR EREA R BT R
Em
EHNIZOLE)BRAR* PRC RMB280,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic
H ARE component
280,000,000 7 SES T
ETAEERAA PRC RMB 100,000,000 89% - Manufacture of electronic
H AR component
100,000,000 7 SES T

* wholly foreign owned enterprise

Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and
Truly (USA) Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at 31 December 2016 and 2015 or at any
time during the years.

—=

—=

* SNEEE DR

BREMEFERADE KTruly (USA)
Inc.oh » FTEWNEB R A mAR AEE
BE -

R-ZE—RFRZZE—AF+=A
—t+—BH®FRITAER SHBEAQ
A ETRAEEZERES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 %&E:E—}—\iﬁtzﬁ =

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. FLFEEMBLERE (&)

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

(a) MBEARAZ—KRERE)

RBEHR AARHEAEHAKEE
TAEAREZEMMBERR - ILF
MEBARKEMNEELE - ZFH
BARZEEXZBHMENT ¢

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEER T EE A ME A FEE
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—hF
Investment holding or inactive Hong Kong 7 7
RE PR S IEE B B
Germany 1 1
=
Singapore 1 1
N
9 9

(b) Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling
interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting
and principal rights held by non-
place of business controlling interests

Name of subsidiary FEM AR HERREREE 2

WEARERE TEEXHY RERER REELA
2016 2015
“g-RE  —T-RF

(b) BEERFEREZZHFZENE
DEZFHE

TREVNERERFFZERBE 2 AE
BIEREMBE LR ZFFE

Profit/(loss) allocated to
non-controlling interests Accumulated non-
PEREFERER controlling interests
ZaFl/(B8) Rt FERES
2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-XF <A “E-xF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

EHXERRDBRAF* PRC 14.6% 14.6%
H

Non wholly-owned subsidiary of
ERAERGERR A

EHABROERLAZ
FEENERE

GLAEBRLA] PRC 1% -

E

94,995 83,425 571,440 510,064

(295) - 11,952 -

583,392 510,064

* excluding non-controlling interests of 1= #|3¢ ERX N BE A
Al’s subsidiary

134 Truly International Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. EAFEEMBLEEH (&)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests
(continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
above subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

ERNER D EPR 2 7 and its subsidiaries

(b) EEEAFEZERERZFZENE

DR ZFHE(E)

B LK 8 A REA EARIE AR
BmZHBERBENT - TolERa M
BEMBELSEBEARRAMEHNZ

ERHABRGERABDREWB LR

2016 2015

—B—RF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTAET FAT

Current assets REBEE 9,637,540 6,308,154

Non-current assets IRBEE 4,335,351 3,687,158

Current liabilities mEask 8,940,489 6,066,991

Non-current liabilities eI N=R 1,045,789 375,000
Equity attributable to owners RARIHA AL

of the Company 3,403,221 3,043,257
Non-controlling interests of EFRERNHBRAF]

EAXERNBR AT FEPEAR R 571,440 510,064

Non-controlling interests of subsidiary of  {EF|¥%ERRHDER A FIH B AR
EAMHERNBRAA Z I 11,952 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 » HZE—-Z

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40.

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)

136

Details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

(continued)

ERIKXER DGR AT and its subsidiaries

(continued)

—RETZAZ+—HLEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS

FLAFEERBATRNEH (2

(b) EEEAFEREZZFZENE
DEZFHF(E)

FERXERGARLAREWMBRR

(&)
2015
—ZT—FhF
HK$'000
T
Revenue W25 17,197,431 12,268,272
Expenses Bz 373,761 329,303
Profit for the year REEHF 651,679 572,310
Profit attributable to owners of KRBVEE AEEEFH
the Company 556,979 488,885
Profit attributable to the non-controlling 12 71¢ @Hﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ&’& Al
interests of 5N ERMD B R A A FEE AR A o PR A S 7 94,995 83,425
Loss attributable to the non-controlling {EF|Yt B AR A B E A A
interests of subsidiary of IR R SR
ERHERMNBRAT] (295) -
Profit for the year KEF 7 651,679 572,310
Other comprehensive expense RN BEE AEL
attributable to owners of the HiamAx
Company (197,015) (116,115)
Other comprehensive expense EAXERNDERA
attributable to the non-controlling BTN e
interests of {5 F| £ B D BR A A Eﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi (33,619) (19,814)
Other comprehensive income EFHRERMNBRARNEQF]
attributable to the non-controlling 2 IEIE AR RE S AL
interests of subsidiary of Hiap 2w A
ERHERMNBRAT] 15 -
Other comprehensive expense REFEMPEMX
for the year (230,619) (135,929)
Total comprehensive income FiN/NEIE ¥ PN A
attributable to owners of the 2HEWA BT
Company 359,964 372,770
Total comprehensive income ERYERDARA
attributable to the non-controlling IRV RS A
interests of 1= F ¢ BN R A A ZERALBEE 61,376 63,611
Total comprehensive expense EFARERMNBIRARNEBE QR
attributable to the non-controlling IR R (S
interests of subsidiary of ZEAS B
ERHERMNBRAT] (280) -
Total comprehensive income KFEEE2EMALEE
for the year 421,060 436,381
Net cash inflow from operating activitiesA% & 2 #4518 & K A F 58 87,829 983,831
Net cash outflow from investing KE TSRS R IFEE
activities (1,014,203) (1,048,088)
Net cash inflow (outflow) MEEFHRERAORH)
from financing activities SEEE 1,244,990 (1,138,009)
Net cash inflow (outflow) BemA/ (Rt #8 318,616 (1,202,266)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fRe it iﬁiﬁiﬂﬂ 3
For the year ended 31 Decembbr 2016 ‘ -ﬁffﬂ?d/\iﬁ‘l' A= ‘|’ HiEEE

lﬂ" g :

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, a
subsidiary of the Company is a defendant in a legal
action in ltaly involving the alleged defective goods
manufactured by the subsidiary according to its
customers’ designs and specifications. The claim above
against the subsidiary is approximately Euro 7.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$59 million) in
aggregate. The directors believe, based on legal advice,
that the case has legal and factual grounds to defend
and therefore it is not probable that losses (including
claims for costs) will be incurred. As a result, no
provision has been made as at 31 December 2016 and
2015 in this regard.

(ii)

Corporate guarantee given by the

41. RRAR

(i) HE T FRFER-_ZE—FHF+_H
:+ Etiﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ—%W%ﬂ
ARBEARM—REIESRZWB AR
BEEREP R R EFREE
AR IERETT - Liidty
ZHBA TZ$$mAmﬁ7mowo
BX 7T (#8557 49 59,000,000 7T ) °
ERBEEEERMEE EZ%WE;E&
MEEBREETIR Bt BHE
TRAGCELEBE(BREERER) -
W RZE—ARFRZE—RF
T A=+ —HA R EE -

2016
—E—XRE

2015
—AEF
HK$'000
FTATT

HK$'000
F#7

REBBETUTALZRT

Group for bank borrowings granted to: & {EH A FIER -
An associate AN 3,360,160 3,538,920
and utilised by: BB TATER
An associate i NNG| 2,793,244 1,478,100
In addition, at 31 December 2016, the other shareholder LGN - E—RNF+ZA=+—8"

of an associate provided corporate guarantee to the
above bank borrowings in proportion to its respective
ownership interest amounting to approximately HK$921
million (2015: HK$867 million). A counter-indemnity in
favour of the other shareholder is executed pursuant to
which the Group undertakes to indemnify the other
shareholder 27.4% (2015: 24.5%) of the liabilities
arising from the bank borrowings.

The directors assess the risk of default of the associate
at the end of reporting period and consider the risk to
be insignificant and it is less likely that any guaranteed
amount will be claimed by the counterparties.

ﬁ%/‘TZﬁfmﬁxﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁé

MEMBITEERERIRAERY
921,000,000/ 7T(= T — & F:
%ﬂmmm%ﬁw$ﬁguaﬁﬂ

BEAZ A RBERE - Bt
REEEH mﬁmﬁ%%m&m&%
rELEBEHEZ22714% (ZE—H & :
245%) °

EENRESHRIBBERRZED
Rk - RAEREERILTEKN - MR
HHF AR RIAERESHE

T—REFH o FANERBERIF

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f

FaMBEERME /e L,
For the year ended 31 December 2016 » HZE=-F— X F+=H E-}-ﬁﬁ;ﬁg I/

42,

43.

138

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group’s bills receivables as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 that were discounted to banks on
a full recourse basis.

42.

BReMAE
MTRAEER_FT-—R"FER_F—RF
ToA=+—AREEEREEENR TR
T2 KRR -

2016 2015
—B-XE —T—3F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Carrying amount of discounted bills IR R EEEE
receivables 5,541 36,469
Carrying amount of associated liabilities & B EREE (5,541) (36,469)
Net position FEFE = -

The Group discounted bills receivables to banks by
discounting those receivables on a full recourse basis. As the
Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the
cash received on the transfer as discounted bills (see note
29). These financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

43.

AEEREBUEREEENRRBERE TR
T HRAKEYBEZEHREREEX
[ e B35 - AR R R W R B 2 B AR
HE;REEEATRARENC YRS (R
iH29) RFCREERAKE 2R A M
ARILER P 1 SR AR A B -

FRFZHBRAER

BERARRRHERRZHBIRREK 2 ER
B

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Investments in subsidiaries WEARIEE 81,700 81,700
Amount due from a subsidiary A ENGIE ] 871,684 865,664
Other assets Hih&E 2,533 2,445
955,917 949,809

Total liabilities FEN=E (59,837) (59,732)
Net assets BEFE 896,080 890,077
Share capital P& 58,142 58,142
Reserves ] 837,938 831,935
Total equity B 896,080 890,077
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. FARZHMERAER &)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Capital
Share Share Special  redemption Retained
capital  premium* reserve# reserve profits Total
kA& REE* RHEGY EXEODEE REER CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THT THT T
At 1 January 2015 W=-Z-1F-A—-H 58,142 777,925 17410 867 36,086 890,430
Profit for the year REREN - - - - 348,499 348,499
Dividends recognised as BRBDELRE
distribution - - - - (348,852) (348,852)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1EF
+-A=1+-H 58,142 777,925 17,410 867 35,733 890,077
Profit for the year KEFHERN - - - - 296,713 296,713
Dividends recognised as BRAENRRE
distrioution - - - - (290,710) (290,710)
At 31 December 2016 BB
+ZA=1+-H 58,142 777,925 17,410 867 41,736 896,080

* Under the applicable laws of Cayman Islands, the share premium * RERSHE ZEREN  AATZBMHRE
of the Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to Al ks A A E R A AR Sk 40 Bl 2 & S M PR EEE
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or HRS LS - HREEEEL DRk~
Articles of Association and provided that immediate following the EE% AQNFATRAEEEBRD ST
distribution or paying dividend the Company is able to pay its debts HAfEIE -
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

# The special reserve of the Company represents the difference # AR F 2 BRI TSR AR BIE W E B
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the NEZBHEBZERWEATREEEE
Company's subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares MR EEANR TR ERRT 2 AR TRNE
of these companies were acquired by the Company, and the ERER =5 -
nominal amount of the Company’'s shares issued for the
acquisitions.

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 44. BEHEEE

On 14 February 2017, fEREF AR 7], an indirectly wholly- Rt E—F+MA  BE2EHEL

owned subsidiary, has entered into an investment agreement FEFIE T AR AT E (R aIE) %8 5

with, among the emstmg s.harehollders “of Le§h| Zh|>f,|n BIRIE (2 BE AT ([L85% ) > 8

Electronic Technology (Tianjin) Limited (“Leshi Zhixin"), ERETIRERE Bl EHETFER

pursuant to which 15| & F AR A F] conditionally agreed to jig ”x = » = = o

acquire 2.3438% equity interest in Leshi Zhixin at a AR RIEF B OB SAR BN 2 2.3438% B

consideration of RMB720,000,000. Details are set out in the i '\TJ‘{EZ%}\E%DO'OOO'OOOE - A

Company's announcement dated 14 February 2017. BHERARRBRA-F—CF-A+HA

ZRE .

On 14 March 2017, 5 FIEFHR AT, an indirectly wholly- RIEBE—+FE=A1+MA - HE2ENBA

owned subsidiary, has entered into the co-operation FHEMEFBIE A T AT & A BT R &

memorandum of understanding with Shucheng County EEEHEITAERES  NEAERG

People’s Government and China Fortune Land in relation to BT AT e IR T AFIEEEREICDE

the formation of a company in PRC. The newly formed RERTHE  EERNEE - SESBEHA

company will be primarily engaged in research and AATREA-E &= AHA T Ak .

development and production and sale of LCD display

products. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement

dated 14 March 2017.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HMESHEE

/5
7k
K 7

RESULTS *i8

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=t+—-HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E——F —E—=F —EF —E—hF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHx FEx FET FTRET
Revenue 25 12,374,379 20,680,750 21,415,651 19,427,118 22,071,521
Cost of sales SHERA (10,817,526)  (17,788,815)  (18,929,229)  (17,305,461)  (19,875,843)
Gross profit E7 1,556,853 2,891,935 2,486,422 2,121,657 2,195,678
Other income Hep g A 51,717 109,492 124,494 132,600 79,731
Other gains and losses EfEs 19,185 (2,320) (45,096) (107,923) (18,307)
Impairment loss on available-for-  A[ it H &% &R E
sale investments &8 - - (7,216) (29,821) (2,188)
Administrative expenses THER (365,210) (479,496) (429,478) (410,454) (481,392)
Distribution and selling expenses 44 & {4 & & A (206,107) (325,923) (395,733) (432,511) (352,885)
Finance costs BMBER (72,646) (78,974) (93,890) (102,501) (180,237)
Share of results of associates ~ DEEE AN AIEE - - (17,502) (47,691) (368,048)
Profit before tax RiATH 983,792 2,114,714 1,622,001 1,123,356 872,352
Income tax expense FTieRiF Y (267,833) (346,447) (372,725) (194,509) (195,785)
Profit for the year REE T 715,959 1,768,267 1,249,276 928,847 676,567
Attributable to: AT AL
Equity holders of the Company KA Al 15H A 710,261 1,619,990 1,118,369 845,422 581,867
Non-controlling interests IR 5,698 148,277 130,907 83,425 94,700
715,959 1,768,267 1,249,276 928,847 676,567
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR

At 31 December

R+=B=+-H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—Z—-F =ZE-= —E-MFE —Z-HF CEBE-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FAET FAEL FAL FTRET
Total assets BEME 11,687,162 16,280,931 18,731,628 18,234,444 23,296,761
Total liabilities BaE (6,446,875)  (9,054,075)  (11,208,169)  (10,638,863)  (16,001,894)

5,140,287 7,226,856 7,623,369 7,595,581 7,294,867

Equity attributable to equity EN/NGIL SEESZS N
owners of the Company FEfb 1B 4,977,239 6,904,120 7,076,906 7,085,517 6,711,475
Non-controlling interests RS 163,048 322,736 446,453 510,064 583,392

5,140,287 7,226,856 7,623,369 7,595,581 7,294,867
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